




















RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FOR FUNDING
UP TO $427,500 FOR VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES (PROJECT
OKLAHOMA) UNDER THE TEXAS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ACT OF 1979, AS AMENDED, FOR INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS THAT ARE REQUIRED OR SUITABLE FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT, RETENTION, OR EXPANSION OF FACILITIES TO
PROMOTE OR DEVELOP NEW OR EXPANDED BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES, AND TO CREATE AND MAINTAIN NEW JOBS

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation (“LEDC™) is a Type B corporation

created and operated pursuant to the Texas Economic Development Act of 1979, as amended (“the Act”);
and

WHEREAS, the Act provides for the funding of certain projects for the development, retention, or
expansion of facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to promote
or develop new or expanded business enterpriscs, create or retain Jobs within the state, promote new or

expanded business development, and construct infrastructural improvements for new or expanded business
enterprises; and

WHEREAS, LEDC approved a project named VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES after
proper public notice and a public hearing on August 6, 2018, for an incentive amount not to exceed
$427,500 based on a $6.75 million investment, with up to 70 new full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs with an
average annual wage of 75,000 to be created over a five (5) year period and retained for the ensuing five
(5) year period; and

WHEREAS, the LEDC has determined that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES (a)
meets the requirements for a project under the Act; (b) serves as a public purpose by contributing
to the development, retention, or expansion facilities, including expenditures required or suitable
for infrastructure necessary to promote or develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to

the creation or retention of jobs within the City, County and State; and (c) should be approved and
funded.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL
THAT:

SECTION 1. The facts and findings described in the preamble of this resolution are
incorporated herein as if fully set out.

SECTION 2. The infrastructure improvements project costs and other associated
development costs are HEREBY APPROVED as follows:

The LEDC shall pay up to $427,500 for infrastructure and other development costs

Resolution No 2018-12



subject to the conditions as set out in Exhibit A Economic Development Performance
Agreement attached hereto and in Chapters S01, 504, and 505 of the Texas Fconomic
Development Corporation Act of 1979,

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Lockhart City Council heid on this
day of , 2018.

City of Lockhart

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Connie Constancio, TRMC Peter Gruning, City Attorney
City Secretary

Resolution No, 20812

L



EXHIBIT A

ECONOMIC BEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT

This Economic Development Performance Agreement (“Agreement”) is made
and entered into by and between THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION OF LOCKHART, TEXAS (“LEDC™), a Type B Economic
Development Corporation, and PROJECT OKLAHOMA a limited liability corporation.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, PROJECT OKLAHOMA desires to expand to the City of Lockhart,
Texas (“City”) and participate in the Economic Development Program established in this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the LEDC desires to establish the Economic Development Program
outlined herein and to offer incentives to PROJECT OKLAHOMA to locate such
business in the City; and

WHEREAS, LEDC is authorized to promote state and local economic
development and to stimulate business and commercial activity within the City, and
LEDC has determined that substantial economic benefits, including an increase in the
City’s tax rolls, an increase in sajes tax revenues, and the creation of new opportunities
for local employment, will accrue to the City and the surrounding area, if such business is
successfully developed on such property; and

WHEREAS, LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA desire to enter into this
Agreeruent in order to comply with Sec, 501.15 8, Texas Local Government Code, which
requires an economic developent corporation, in order to offer incentives or make
expenditures on behalf of a business enterprise under a project, to enter into a
performance agreement that addresses a schedule of jobs created or retained, capital
investment to be made, direct incentives provided, and the terms under which repayment
shall be made in the event a business enterprise does not meet the requirements specified
in the Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants,
agreements, representations, and warranties hereinafier set forth and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowiedged
LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA agree as follows:

AGREEMENTS

Section 1. Recitals

The recitals set {orth above are incorporated herein by reference as if fuliv ser
forth in their entirety.

(S



Section 2: Term

The term of this Agreemeni shall be ten (10} years from the 1¥ day of the month
following the beginning of business operations by PROJECT OKLAHOMA. When wised
hereafter, the phrase “duration of this Agreement” shall mean the term as defined above.

Section 3. LEDC Requirements

In consideration of PROJECT OKLAHOMA agreement to locate iis business
within the City and to perform the other acts hereinafter described, LEDC agrees it will:

{a) To provide incentives up to $427,50C for developments and other associated
costs, which will create up to 71 FTE jobs with an average annual wage of
$75,00C per year which are subject to the conditions set out herein and in
Chapter 505 of the Local Government Code (formerly Section 4B, of the
Texas Economic Development Corporation Act of 1979). The amount of
financial benefit that PROJECT OKLAHOMA will retain from the LEDC
project funds is subject to the number of jobs created, as described in attached
Potential Value of Incentives Package.

Section 4. PROJECT OKLAHOMA Requiremenis

In consideration of LEDC agreeing to perform the foregoing, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA agrees:

(a) To purchase the building at 1400 FM-20 {Blackjack Street) and for other
related improvements valued at $4 million in City of Lockhart;

(b) To begin operation within 120 days of agreement,;

{¢) To employ a minimum of 71 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE”) employees at an
average annual wage of $75,000 for the (10) ten-year period of this
agreement.  The terrn “Ful! Time Equivalent,” as used in this Agreement,
shail mean employment worked by one or more people during a calendar year
that is equal to a total of at least 2,080 hours:

o
(8

) To keep current in the payment of iaxes owed io any {axing jurisdiction in
which the Property is lscated.

4}
L

4
in
;a

soat e S T e sl
CCAPIUre/ | ermunaiion

o
L]
ow]
.

ia) In the event that PROJECT DKLAHOMA pegins operating iis business, but
subsequently discontinues operating its business in such for any reason {a
“Business Interruption™), except as a result of fire, explosion, ot other casualty or
accident, force majeure or other natural disaster, war or civil uprest, a taking
under eminent domain, regulaiory restrictions of any applicable governmenral

snfity which makes conduct of the PROJECT O LAHOMA illegal or

-2



cconomically untenable, or other cvent beyond the reasonable control of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA - (the “Business Interruption Exceptions™) for a period
of more than one hundred cighty (180) days during the duwration of this
Agreement, then in such event PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall be required 1o
tepay to LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the
expiration of such period.,

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shal] fail to repay the LEDC within
thirty (30) days of the date such repayment is due, PROJECT OKLAHOMA
hereby agrees that the LEDC may place a lien on the Properties for fuli
repayment of any monies expended. The burden shall be upon PROJECT
OKLAHOMA to prove to the satisfaction of the LEDC that the discontinuance
of operating its business was a result of one of the Business Interruption
Exceptions. In the event PROJECT OKLAHOMA meets this burden and the
LEDC is satisfied that the discontinuance of the operation of the manufacturing
facility was the result of events beyond the control of PROJECT OKLAHOMA,
the parties shall commemorate such satisfaction in a document signed and dated
by the Parties. PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall then have a period of one (1) year
from the date operations of its business were discontinued in which to resume
business operations.

(©) In the event that following a Business Interruption which may reasonably be cured
within one year of the cessation of business operations, business operations fail to
fesume within one (1) year, PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall be required to repay
LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this Agreement
within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the expiration of the
one year period. In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to timely
repay the LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees that the LEDC may
place a lien on the Properties for fuil payment of such monies.

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA allows ad valorem taxes owed to the
City of Lockhart, Texas on the Property, or its business personal property or
inveniory to become delinquent and fails to timely and properly follow the legal
procedures for their protest or contest, PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall he required
1o repay LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of writien demand therefore following such
svent. In the eveni that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shail fail 1o timely repay the
LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees ihat the LEDC may piace 3 liep
on PROJECT OKLAHGOMA assets for fuil payment of such monijes.

Section 6. Certification of Compliance by PROJECT OKTAHOMA

On or before March | of cach year that this Apreement is in etfeci, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA shali upon request certify in writing to the LEDC that it is in compliance

[P%)



with all provisions of this Agreement. Such certification shall mclude any and al]

documentation required by the [ EDC establishing that PROTECT OKL AYOMA has met
ihe annual smployment requicernent for the previous year and that all taxes reiaied ic the
Property have been paid in full as required by law. The LEDC, upon reasonable notice
and at any reasonable time, shall have the ri ght to review any and all records of related to
the provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to FTE positions created or
retained, capital investments made, and use or distribution of and direct incentives

received.

Section 7. Dispute Resolution, Applicable Law, Venue, and Atiorneys Fees

(a) In the event of any contreversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement
or the breach of this Agreement, the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve the
same by good faith mediation before a mediator agreed to by the parties. LEDC and
PROJECT OKLAHOMA expressly waive any statutory or other legal requirement that
may exist for serving notices or engaging in alternative dispute resolution prior to doing
S0.

(b) In the event that the claim or controversy is not settled by mediation or any other
alternative dispute resolution method agreed to by the parties, either party may file suit in
a court of competent jurisdiction sitting in the State of Texas. Venue shall lie in Caldwell
County, Texas. The prevailing party in any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall
be entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary costs and attorney’s fees from the non-
prevailing party pursuant to applicable law.

Section 8. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, when executed, contains the entire agreement between the
LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA with respect to the fransactions contemplated
herein. This Agreement may be amended, altered, or revoked only by written instrument
signed by the LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA.

Section @ Successors and Assigns

Ihis Agreement may not be assigned to any third party by PROJECT
CKLAHOMA without the written consent of LEDC, fa the svent of such A35igNmeil or

in the event of legal succession of PROJECT OKLAHOMA interest in this Agreemen
operation of law, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benafir o s
aSSIgN Or SUCCEsSOT.

Section 10 Notices

Any notice and/or statement required and permitted 1o be delivered shall be
deemed delivered by depositing same in the United Siates maii. certified with return
receipt requested, nostage nrepaid, addressed io the apprepriaie party at the following

: s M . T - £
addressas or at such addresses provided £V the carties in writing hareafs;



PROJECT O AHOMA-
Bresident/CEO
PROJECT OKLAHOMA
1400 FM-20 East (Blackjack Roady
Lockhart, TX 78644

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation:
President
Lockhart Economic Developrent Corporation
308 W. San Antonio
P.0O. Box 239
Lockhart, TX 78644

Section 11. Interpretation

Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the
event of dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and
neither more strongly for or against either party.

Section 12. Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or -

unenforceable under present or firture laws, then and in that event it is the intention of the
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and it is
also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or provision
that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this
Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to
the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable.

Section 13. Mutual Assistance

LEDC and PROJECT GKLAHOMA agree to do all things reasonably necessary
a1 ppropriate o varry oui the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and
assist each other in carrying out such terms and provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF e parties hersto have siecuted fhis AZISEMEn Lt e
@™ dayof fhiguct . 2018,
THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION: ATTERT:
Py A 7
///”sé—v /;@n/ 4 fﬁ%/ N
7 o P (i !;é’/éﬁ“\ = .

o9 T e s = T+ R e

fants moedgers, LEDC Presiden revert lobias, LEDEC Sgerata
N



PROJECT OKLAHOMA:

President/CEC
Siate of Texas )
§
County of Caldwell §

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Qgﬂ'\ day of
u;\’ , 2018, by Vance Rodgers, known to me to be the President of the
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation of Lockhart, Texas.

Undreq )@o.Dc

Notary Public State of Texas

ANDREA DAVILA
Notary ID #131241939
My Commission Expires

November 6. 2021

My Commission expires:

NDUCMb‘ﬁr lﬂ; 02

State of Texas §

§

County of §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

» 2018. by John Kinzer, known to me to be the President/CEQ of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA, a Texas Limited Liability Corporation, acting on behalf of
such cornoration.

Notary Public $tate of Texas

My Commizsior synires

I



POTENTIAL VALUE OF INCENTIVES PACKAGE
PROSPECT: PROJECT OKLAHOMA

Incentives to locate $6.75 million project and create up to 70 FTE jobs with an average annual wages of over
$75,000; estimated total payroll of $5.25 million in five years

LEDCINCENTIVES PROPOSED: ‘Upto
Reimburse company for development of land, improvements $337,500
Reimburse impact, building/inspection fees, water/sewer taps $25,000
Electric transformers 525,000
Workforce incentives for 20 jobs at 52,000 per job $40,000
LEDC INCENTIVES PROPOSED UP TO: $427,500

* LEDC will reimburse company incentives up to $427,500 upon proof of
$6.75 million capital investment to be paid out in increments

**QOther incentives to be pursued via City and County property tax
rebates, ACC Skills Development Fund, and other

All above potential incentives to be considered by LEDC in Aug 2018 but
subject to final approval by City Council and County

8/17/2013C:\Users\ecodev\Downioads\080618 LEDC incentives Project Oklahoma






LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOMENT CORPORATION
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (LEDC) FOR FUNDING UP TO $427,500 FOR PROJECT
OKILAHOMA UNDER THE TEXAS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ACT OF 1979, AS AMENDED, FOR INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS THAT ARE REQUIRED OR SUITABLE FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT, RETENTION, OR EXPANSION OF FACILITIES TO
PROMOTE OR DEVELOP NEW OR EXPANDED BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES, AND TO CREATE AND MAINTAIN NEW JOBS

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Econemic Development Corporation (“LEDC”) is a Type B corporation
created and operated pursuant to the Texas Economic Development Act of 1979, as amended {“the Act™);
and

WHEREAS, the Act provides for the funding of certain projects for the development, retention, or
expansion of facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary 1 promote
or develop new or expanded business enterprises, create or retain jobs within the state, promote new or
expanded business development, and construct infrastructural improvements for new or expanded business
enterprises; and

WHEREAS, LEDC approved a project named PROJECT OKLAHOMA after proper public notice
and a public hearing on August 6, 2018, for an incentive amount not to exceed $427.500 based on a S6.75
million investment, with up tc 70 new full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs with an average annual wage of
$75,000 to be created over a five (5) year peried and retained for the ensuing five (5) year period; and

WHEREAS, the LEDC has determined that PROJECT OKLAHOMA (a) meets the
requirements for a project under the Act; (b) serves as a public purpose by contributing to the
development, retention, or expansion facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for
infrastructure necessary to promote or develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to the
creation or retention of jobs within the City, County and State; and (c) should be approved and
funded.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION THAT:

SECTION 1. The facts and findings described in the preamble of this resolution are
incorporated herein as if fully set out.

SECTION 2. The infrastructure improvements preoject costs and other associated
development costs are HEREBY APPROVED as follows:

The LEDC shall pay up to 5427,500 for infrastructure and other development costs
subject to the conditions as set out in Exhibit A Economic Development Performance
Agreement attached hereto and in Chapters 501, 504, and 505 of the Texas Economic

Development Corporation Act ot 1979.
LEDC Resolution No. 2018-06



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Lockhart Fconomic Development
Corporation held on this [Q“'I day of Amg}gsl , 2018.

Attest:

Lockhart Economic Developinent Corporation

é;z,ﬁ/

Fermin T. Islas, Chairperson

(It

Vance Rodgers, Président

Ro‘bcrt Toblas Secretz]j
;

LEDC Resolution No. 2018-06






Section 2: Term

The term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the 1% day of the month
following the beginning of business operations by PROJECT OKLAHOMA. When used
hereafter, the phrase “duration of this Agreement” shall mean the term as defined above.

Section 3. LEDC Requirements

In consideration of PROJECT OKLAHOMA agreement to locate its business
within the City and to perform the other acts hereinafter described, LEDC agrees it will:

(a) To provide incentives up to $427,500 for developments and other associated
costs, which will create up to 71 FTE jobs with an average annual wage of
$75,000 per year which are subject to the conditions set out herein and in
Chapter 505 of the Local Government Code (formerly Section 4B, of the
Texas Economic Development Corporation Act of 1979). The amount of
financial benefit that PROJECT OKLAHOMA will retain from the LEDC
project funds is subject to the number of jobs created, as described in attached
Potential Value of Incentives Package.

Section 4. PROJECT OKLAHOMA Reguirements

In consideration of LEDC agreeing to perform the foregoing, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA agrees:

{a) To purchase the building at 1400 FM-20 (Blackjack Street) and for other
related improvements valued at $4 million in City of Lockhart;

{(b) To begin operation within 120 days of agreement;

{¢) To employ a minimum of 71 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE™) employees at an
average annual wage of $75,000 for the (10) ten-year period of this
agreement. The term “Full Time Equivalent,” as used in this Agreement,
shall mean employment worked by one or more people during a calendar year
that is equal to a total of at least 2,080 hours;

{d) To keep current in the payment of taxes owed to any taxing jurisdiction in
which the Property is located.

Section 5. Recapture/Termination

(a) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA begins operating its business, but
subsequently discontinues operating its business in such for any reason (a
“Business Interruption”), except as a result of fire, explosion, or other casualty or
accident, force majeure or other natural disaster, war or civil unrest, a taking

under eminent domain, regulatory restrictions of any applicable governmental
entity which makes conduct of the PROJECT OKLAHOMA illegal or



economically untenable, or other event beyond the reasonable conirol of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA: (the “Business Interruption Exceptions™) for a period
of more than one hundred eighty (180) days during the duration of this
Agreement, then in such event PROJECT OKI.AHOMA shall be required to
repay to LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the
expiration of such period.

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to repay the LEDC within
thurty (30) days of the date such repayment is due, PROJECT OKLAHOMA
hereby agrees that the LEDC may place a lien on the Properties for full
repayment of any monies expended. The burden shall be upon PROJECT
OKLAHOMA to prove to the satisfaction of the LEDC that the discontinuance
of operating jts business was a result of one of the Business Interruption
Exceptions. In the event PROJECT OKLAHOMA meets this burden and the
LEDC is satisfied that the discontinuance of the operation of the manufacturing
facility was the result of events beyond the control of PROJECT OKLAHOMA,
the parties shall commemorate such satisfaction in a document signed and dated
by the Parties. PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall then have a period of one (1) year
from the date operations of its business were discontinued in which to resume
business operations.

(c) In the event that following a Business Interruption which may reasonably be cured
within one year of the cessation of business operations, business operations fail to
resume within one (1) year, PROJECT OKI.LAHOMA shall be required to repay
LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this Agreement
within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the expiration of the
one year period. In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to timely
repay the LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees that the LEDC may
place a lien on the Properties for full payment of such monies.

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA allows ad valorem taxes owed to the
City of Lockhart, Texas on the Property, or its business personal property or
inventory to become delinquent and fails to timely and properly follow the legal
procedures for their protest or contest, PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall be required
to repay LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following such
event. In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to timely repay the
LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees that the LEDC may place a lien
on PROJECT OKLAHOMA assets for full payment of such monies.

Section 6. Certification of Compliance by PROJECT OKLAHOMA

On or before March 1 of each year that this Agreement is in effect, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA shall upon request certify in writing to the LEDC that it is in compliance



with all provisions of this Agreement. Such certification shall include any and all
documentation required by the LEDC establishing that PROJECT OKLAHOMA has met
the annual employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the
Property have been paid in full as required by law. The LEDC, upon reasonable notice
and at any reasonable time, shall have the right to review any and all records of related to
the provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to FTE positions created or
retained, capital investments made, and use or distribution of and direct incentives
received.

Section 7. Dispute Resolution, Applicablc Law, Venue, and Attomcys Fees

(a) In the event of any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement
or the breach of this Agreement, the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve the
same by good faith mediation before a mediator agrecd to by the parties. LEDC and
PROJECT OKLAHOMA expressly waive any statutory or other legal requirement that
may exist for serving notices or engaging in alternative dispute resolution prior to doing
S0.

(b) In the event that the claim or controversy is not settled by mediation or any other
alternative dispute resolution method agreed to by the parties, either party may file suit in
a court of competent jurisdiction sitting in the State of Texas. Venue shall lie in Caldwell
County, Texas. The prevailing party in any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall
be entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary costs and attorney’s fees from the non-
prevailing party pursuant to appiicable law.

Section 8. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, when executed, contains the entire agreement between the
LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA with respect to the transactions contemplated
herein. This Agreement may be amended, altered, or revoked only by written instrument
signed by the LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA.

Section 9. Successors and Assigns

This Agreement may not be assigned to any third party by PROJECT
OKLAHOMA without the written consent of LEDC. In the event of such assignment or
in the event of legal succession of PROJECT OKLAHOMA interest in this Agreement by
operatton of law, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of such
assign Or SUCCEessor.

Section 10. Notices

Any notice and/or statement required and permitied to be delivered shall be
deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following
addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter:



PROJECT OKLAHOMA -
President/CEO
PROJECT OKLAHOMA
1400 FM-20 East (Blackjack Road)
Lockhart, TX 78644

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation:
President
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation
308 W. San Antonio
P.O. Box 239
Lockhart, TX 78644

Section 11. Interpretation
Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the

event of dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and
neither more strongly for or against either party.

Section 12. Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or -

unenforceable under present or future laws, then and in that event it is the intention of the
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and it is
also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lien of each clause or provision
that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this
Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to
the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable.

Section 13. Mutual Assistance
LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA agree to do all things reasonably necessary

and appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and
assist each other in carrying out such terms and provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the
day of ﬂu@umf ,2018.

THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC

PEVELOPMENT CORPORATION: ATTEST: o
~
y
() Loy /é@%ﬁ J
Vance Rodgers, LEDC President Robert Tobias, LE[ﬁfretary
5



PROJECT OKLAHOMA:

President/CEQ
Staie of Texas $
County of Caldwell g
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this m day of

ngm’( , 2018, by Vance Rodgers, known to me to be the President of the
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation of Lockhart, Texas.

Ondneq DoDe

Notary Public State of Texas

eI ANDREA DA . :
B Nocary 10 413134 103 My Commission expires:
!‘?ﬁ(’ My Commission Expires

November 6. 2021 Novewth el b, 2-02-

State of Texas §
§
County of §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

. 2018, by John Kinzer. known to me to be the President/CEQ of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA, a Texas Limited Liability Corporation, acting on behalf of
such corporation.

Notary Public State of Texas

My Commission expires:





































RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL AMENDING
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-11 REGARDING APPROVAL OF THE
PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT SOAR (CROP ONE
HOLDINGS) BY THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2018-11 dated June 5, 2018, the City Council of the City of
Lockhart approved the funding of a project of the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation
("LEDC") called Project Soar (COH); and

WHEREAS. as of the date of the Resolution the LEDC and the Business Entity that will
develop Project Soar (COH) had negotiated Performance Agreement regarding the project. as
required by Sec. 501.158, Texas Local Government Code; and

WHEREAS, certain terms of the Performance Agreement have been amended since the
adoption of the Resolution which include LEDC’s commitment to ensure that utilities, infrastructure,
and a roadway will be made available for the project and that LEDC will assist in securing City
approval of the Project as an Enterprise Zone Project for purposes of the Texas Enterprise Zone
Program; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of the City of Lockhart to acknowledge and
confirm the City’s commitment to perform the obligations of said Performance Agreement, in order
to ensure that the LEDC will meet and comply with the same;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL
THAT:

SECTION 1. The facts and findings described in the preamble of this resolution are
incorporated herein as if fully set out.

SECTION 2. The commitments and obligations of the LEDC contained in the
Performance Agreement for Project Soar (COH), including the City of Lockhart 2015
Certificates of Obligation funding for water infrastructure construction commitments adjacent to
the property, and the LEDC funding and acquisition commitments for the purchase of the
Option Parcel by the LEDC as provided therein are hereby approved and confirmed by the
City Council of the City of Lockhart.

SECTION 3. Except as herein amendment the terms of Resolution No. 2018-11
shall remain in full force and effect.
CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Connie Constancio, City Secretary Peter Gruning, City Attorney

777



DRAFT

Motion o upprove the Fiscal Year 2018 20019 LEDC pudget.

Motion: Morris Alexander Svcond: Alfredo Munaz Foter 6 of 6 10 approve

3. PUBLIC HEARING
A. Hold a public hearing regarding Project Oklahoma and proposed incentive to establish its
business in Lockhart with an estimated initial investment of $6.75 million and creating and
maintaining up to 70 new full time equivalent jobs with an average annual wage of over $75,000
within five (5) years.

Open Public Hearing at: 6.13 P.M_

Is there anvone here that would like to speak in favor of the project? There was none.

Is there anyone here that would like 1o speak in opposition t the project? There was none.
Close Public Hearing at: 644 PM_

4. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
A. Discussion and/or action to consider the approval of LEDC Resolution 2018-06 related to
Project Oklahoma and associated Performance Agreement for funding up to $427.500 for
workforce incentives, infrastructure improvements, and related development costs, that are
required or suitable for the development, retention or expansion of facilities to promote or
develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to create and maintain new jobs.

Motion to approve LEDC Resolution 2015-06

Motion: Morris Alexander Secord: Alfredo Munoz Fote: 6 of 6 10 approve

B. Discussion and/or action to consider the approval of revised Performance Agreement with
Project Soar as recommended by LEDC legal counsel.

Motion 1o approve the revised Performance Agrecment with Project Soar

Morion: Nic Irwin ) Second: Alfredo Munoz Vote: 6 of 6 10 upprove

C. Discussion and/or action regarding the potential sale of Lot 4B, {.806 acre tract in the Lockhart
Industrial Park 11

Mr. Rodgers stated that an existing company is seeking to expand and has inquired as to their
interest in purchasing Lot 4B. The price offered of $75,241was comparable and consistent with
recent sales of industrial tracts in the area and higher than all offers previously submitted. The
company is working to respond to new business development opportunities and is seeking a
prompt response.

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINTTES
Monday, August 6, 2018 - 6:00 P.M.
CIFTY HALL - UPSTAIRS
JO8 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET
Page 2 of 4

7

?



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT

This Economic Development Performance Agreement (“Agreement”) is made
and entered into by and between THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION OF LOCKHART, TEXAS (“LEDC”), a Type B Economic

Development Corporation, and Crop One Holdings, Inc. (“CROP ONE”), a Texas
Limited Liability corporation.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, CROP ONE desires to expand its operations to the City of Lockhart,
Texas (*City”), to acquire a 5.43 acre tract within the City, to construct a facility in the
City, of at least 70,000 square feet with other improvements, including equipment (“the

Facility”), and participate in the Economic Development Program established in this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, LEDC desires to establish the Economic Development Program
outlined herein and to offer incentives to CROP ONE under such Economic Development
Program to locate such business in the City; and

WHEREAS, LEDC is authorized to promote state and local economic
development and to stimulate business and commercial activity within the City, and
LEDC has determined that substantial economic benefits, including an increase in the
City’s tax rolls, an increase in sales tax revenues, and the creation of new opportunities

for local employment, will accrue to the City and the surrounding area, if such business is
successfully developed on such property; and

WHERFEAS, LEDC and CROP ONE desire to enter into this Agreement in order
to comply with Sec. 501.158, Texas Local Government Code, which requires an
cconomic development corporation, in order to offer incentives or make expenditures on
behalf of a business enterprise under a project, to enter into a performance agreement that
addresses a schedule of jobs created or retained, capital investment to be made, direct
incentives provided, and the terms under which repayment shall be made in the event a
business enterprise does not meet the requirements specified in the Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants,
agreements, representations, and warranties hereinafier set forth and {or other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged.
LEDC and CROP ONE agree as follows:



AGREEMENTS

Section 1. Recitals

The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set
forth in their entirety.

Section 2: Term

The term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the 1% day of the month
following the beginning of business operations by CROP ONE at the F acility. When

used hereafter, the phrase “duration of this Agreement” shall mean the term as defined
above.,

Section 3. LEDC Requirements

In consideration of CROP ONE’s agreement to locate its business within the City
and to perform the other acts hereinafter described, LEDC agrees it will:

(a) Provide a Grant equal to $491,049 to CROP ONEF in two parts as described
below.

(b) Provide 50% of the $491,049 Grant to CROP ONE after CROP ONE
purchases 5.43 acres of land in the City, constructs the Facility, as provided
below, and receives a Certificate of Occupancy from the City.

() Provide the remaining 50% of the $491 ,049 Grant to CROP ONE after CROP
ONE provides proof of the creation of up to fifty (50) FTE jobs with an average
annual wage of $35,000 per year as provided in Item 4(e) below and which are
subject to the requircrments of Chapter 505 of the Local Government Code

(formerly Section 4B, of the Texas Feonomic Development Corporation Act of
1979).

The amount of financial benefit that CROF ONE will retain from LEDC
project funds is subject to the number of jobs created, as described in 4(e) below.

(d) Cause the LEDC to acquire a 7.64 acre tract of land contiguous to the 5,43
acre tract of land (“Option Parcel”) and to grant an exclusive option to purchase
ine Option Parcel o LEDC ior the sole benefit of CROP ONE (“Option”). The
Option shall be for a time period of five (5) years from the date of closing of the
purchase of the 5.43 acre tract of land referenced herein, at a purchase price equal
to the current purchase price per acre, as prorated, for the 5.43 acre tract of land.
CROP ONE shall pay the LEDC, at the time of closing on the 5.43 acre wact, an

option fee equal to five percent (5%) of the urchase price of the 7.64 acre iract.
je P p

I~J

0



(&) Ensure that all utilities and infrastructure needed to operate the Facility,
including, without limitation, water, electricity, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and
detention ponds, if required, natura) gas, and telecommunications are available to
the Facility by March 1, 2019. If CROP ONE exercises the Option and purchases
the Option Parcel, LEDC shall further ensure that any and all additional utilities
and infrastructure needed to operate the improvements to be constructed on the

Option Parcel shall be available thereto based on the milestone dates to be agreed
upon by LEDC and CROP ONE.

(f) Ensure that a dedicated roadway that provides truck and automobile access
from state route 130 to and from the F acility, along with lighting and sidewalks is
constructed by March 1, 2019.

(g) Assist in obtaining approval by the City of Lockhart of the Project as an

Enterprise Zone Program for purposes of CROP ONE applying for Texas
Enterprise Zone Program benefits.

(h) Provide, as a condition precedent to the effectivencss of this Agreement,
copies of authorizing resolution(s) confirming approval of the City Council of the
City of Lockhart of this Project and the funding and infrastructure construction
commitments of the City in support of this Agreement and the funding and

acquisition commitments for the purchase of the Option Parcel by the LEDC as
provided herein.

() Provide to CROP ONE, as a further condition precedent to the effectiveness
of this Agreement, a copy of the fully executed purchase agreement between the
LEDC and the current owner of the Option Parcel, under which the LEDC shall
acquire the Option Parcel as provided above.

(i) To the extent reasonably feasible, assist in causing the replatting of the 5.43
acre tract as a separate tax parcel, in compliance with applicable law,

(k) To the extent reasonably feasible, assist in causing the issuance of all
necessary permits, licenses and consenis by the City of Lockhart for construction
and operation of the Facility to be expedited.

In furtherance of Sections 3(e) and (D), LEDC shall provide CROP ONE, within
thirty (30) days from the date hereof, with a list of milestone dates for each designated
phase of the work provided therein, which shall be complementary to CROP ONE’s
conszuction schedule in the completion of each phase of the Facility. The purpose of
such list of milestone dates is in order that the LEDC and CROP ONE shalt coordinate
their respective construction activities with the other in order to facilitate completion of
their respective responsibilities and obligations in a timely and legally compliant manner.
Such milestone dates shal! be amended, as nesded, in order to stay current but failure of
either party to meet a milestone date shall not be a breach of this Agreement. For the
purpose of this Section 3, a sketch of the 5.43 acre tract of land and the Option Parcel.

[UN]



and of the roadway connection o these premises, is attached hereto as Schedule 3 and
made a part hereof

LEDC represents and warrants to CROP ONE that it has available funding to
finance all of the work provided in Sections 3(e) and ().

Section 4. CROP ONE Requirements

In consideration of LEDC agreeing to perform the foregoing, and subject to any

force majeure or Business Interruption Exception, as hereinafter defined, CROP ONE
agrees:

(a) Subject to compliance by the seller of the operative purchase agreements, and
the satisfaction of all conditions precedent to the closing thereunder, purchase the
5.43 acres referenced in this Agreement;

(b) Construct the Facility in the City of at least 70,000 square feet and with other
improvements, including equipment, with a current project budget of
approximately $10,000,000.00 in capital investment, provided that CROP ONE
shall be entitled to revise the budget as a result of, among other things, savings
realized by value engineering, reduction of costs in building materials, equipment,

labor and other components of the Facility, and substitution of individual facility
components;

(c) Submit schematic drawings for the Facility to the City within one hundred
twenty (120) days of execution of this agreement and thereafter commence
construction of the Facility within one hundred twenty (120) days after the later of
(1) the City’s approval of the construction plans and issuance of a building permit
for the Facility and (ii) CROP ONE’s purchase of the 5.43 acre tract;

(d) Complete construction of the Facility within eighteen (18) months after the
oceurrence of the later of item 4(c) (i) or (if) above;

(e) Employ a minimum of fifty ( 503 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE™ emplovees
having an average annual wage of at least $35,000 within the first five (5) years

from the commencement of the term of this Agreement according to the following
schedule:

End of year one: "Twenty (20) employees
End of year two:  Thirty (30) employees
End of year three: Thirty-five (35) employees
End of year four:  Forty (40) employees

End of year five:  Fifty (50) employees

For the purposes of the payment of the amount of the grant contained in ltem
3{c) above, LEDC shall pay the same to CROP ONE within thirty (30) days of

4



D

receipt of satisfactory proof of employmeni of fifty (50) FTE emplovees
regardless of the vear during said five vears in which that total is reached;

CROP ONE shall provide LEDC with proof of employment of employees by
submitting copies of payroll records omitting individual names, and federal
cmployment tax forms providing for only the last four digits of employee social
security numbers, or other documentation reasonably satisfactory to LEDC, which

shall be provided within thirty (30) days of the end of each year of the term of this
Agreement;

Retain at least that number of FTE employees for another five (5) years after
fulfilling the creation of said fifty (50) jobs. The term “Full Time Equivalent,” as
used in this Agreement, shall mean employment worked by one or more people
during a calendar year that is equal to a total of at least 1,820 hours including

hours associated with holidays, vacation, sick and personal time, and overtime;
and

Keep cutrent in the payment of taxes owed for the Facility to any taxing
jurisdiction in which the 5.43 acre tract is located, unless such taxes are being
legally contested by CROP ONE.

Section 5. Termination and Recapture

(a) Subject to the curative rights available to CROP ONE under this Agreement, in

o~

the event that CROP ONE begins operating its business at the Facility but
subsequently discontinues such operations for a period of more than one hundred
eighty (180) days during the duration of this Agreement, then in such event CROP
ONE shall be required to repay to LEDC any monies expended by LEDC under
Section 3 of this Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand from
LEDC therefore following the expiration of such period; provided however that
CROP ONE shall not be required to repay such monies if such discontinuation of
operations is caused by force majeure or is due to a “Business Interruption
Exception.” For the purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure” shall be defined
as fire, explosion, natural disaster or other act of God, war, or civil unrest, and
“Business Interruption Exception” shalt be defined as a taking under eminent
domain, regulatory restrictions or action of any applicable governmental entity, or
other event or action thai makes the conduct of the CROP ONE illegal or
cconomically unsustainable, is beyond the reasonabie control of CROP ONE and
LEDC agrees in the exercise of its reasonable Judgment that continued or renewed
operations are economically unsustainable or the failure of LEDC to perfoimn any
of its obligations contained in Section 3 hereof. Furthermore, CROP ONE shall
not be required to repay such amounts so long as it is diligently taking action(s) to
renew or continue operations at the Facility and such action(s) are considered
diligent by the LEDC in the exercise of its reasonable judgment.

Subject to the curative rights available to CROP ONE under this Agreement, in
the event, that CROP ONE shall fail io repay LEDC within thirty (30) days of the

wn

J S

O



(c)

(d)

date such repayment is due according to the written demand from LEDC, CROP
ONE hereby agrees that LEDC may enforce all of its rights and remedies
available at law and in equity against CROP ONE. The burden shall be upon
CROP ONE to prove to the satisfaction of LEDC that the discontinuance of
operating its business or diligent actions to renew or continue operations was
allowed under Item 5(a) above. In the event CROP ONE meets this burden and
LEDC, in its reasonable judgment, is satisfied that the discontinuance of the
operation of the manufacturing facility was allowed under Item 35(a), the parties
shall commemorate such satisfaction in a document signed and dated by the
Parties. CROP ONE shall then have a period of one (1) year from the date

operations of its business were discontinued in which to resume business
operations.

Subject to the curative rights available to CROP ONE under this Agreement, in
the event, that following a Business Interruption Exception which may reasonably
be cured within one year of the cessation of business operations, business
operations fail to resume within one (1) year, CROP ONE shall be required to
repay LEDC any monies expended by LEDC under Section 3 of this Agreement
within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the expiration of the
one year period. In the event, that CROP ONE shall fail to timely repay LEDC,
CROP ONE hereby agrees that LEDC may enforce all of its rights and remedies
available at law and in equity against CROP ONE.

In the event, that CROP ONE allows ad valorem taxes owed to the City on the
Property, or its business personal property or inventory to become delinquent and
fails to pay such sums after receipt of sixty (60) or more days notice of such
delinquency from LEDC, CROP ONE shall be required to repay LEDC any
monies expended by LEDC under Section 3 of this Agreement within thirty (30)
days of written demand therefore following such event, except that CROP ONE
shall not be required to pay any monies to LEDC or otherwise be considered in
default of this Agreement if it challenges any such taxes or assessments by the
institution of appropriate legal proceedings, inciuding, without limitation,
administrative proceedings. In the event, that CROP ONE shall fail to timely
repay LEDC, CROP ONE hereby agrees that LEDC may enforce all of its rights
and remedies available at law and in equity against CROP ONE.

In the event that CROP ONE fails to employ a minimum of fifty (50) Full Time
Equivalent (“FITE”) employees having an average annual wage of at least
$35,000 within the first five (5) years from the commencement of the term of this
Agreement according (o ihe schedule provided in Item 4(e) above, or fails ic
retain at least that number of FTE employees for another five (5) years after
fulfilling the creation of said fifty (50) jobs, CROP ONE shall reimburse LEDC
the sum of $9,821.00 for each job that is less than the total required in a year or
for which the average annual wage paid is less than $35,000.00. LEDC and
CROP ONE acknowledge that employee tumover and Iocal labor shortages may
cause CROP ONE to fail to meet or retain the minimum number of jobs during
one or more years of the term of this Agreement, and CROP ONE shall not be

N

qd



required to reimburse LEDC said amount for a job that is or becomes vacant and
which CROP ONE is unable to fill for a period of three {3) months or more
despite its reasonable and documented efforts to do so.

Section 6. Certification of Compliance by CROP ONE

On or before March 1 of each year that this Agreement is in effect, CROP ONE
shall, upon written request from LEDC and in addition to any other reports to LEDC
required in this Agreement, certify in writing to LEDC that it is in compliance with all
provisions of this Agreement. Such certification shall include any and all documentation
reasonably required by LEDC establishing that CROP ONE has met the annual
employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the Property
have been paid in full as required by law, subject to the limitations set forth above.
LEDC, upon reasonable notice and at any reasonable time, shall have the right to review
any and all records directly pertaining to the FTE positions created or retained payment

of taxes due the City of Lockhart, and use or distribution of and direct incentives
received.

LEDC for itself, employees and contractors, shall keep strictly confidential any
and all information about employees or other individuals employed at the Facility as a
result of information provided to, or inspected by, LEDC in connection with the
administration of this Agreement under Section 6 hercof or otherwise, subject to action
otherwise required by state law or a court of competent jurisdiction and last resort in the
case of an appeal. It is expressly understood that ail such information obtained by LEDC
is for the limited purpose of verification of CROP ONE’s compliance under this
Agreement. LEDC shall ensure the confidentiality of such information and shall take ali
Ineasures necessary to protect the same against disclosure. Furthermore, LEDC shall

comply with all reasonable instructions of CROP ONE to maintain the confidentiality of
such information.

LEDC for itself, employees and contractors, shall further keep strictly confidential
all information obtained by, or furnished to, LEDC in connection with the Facility and
the business affairs of CROP ONF that are designated in writing as confidential or
proprietary by CROP ONE. Notwithstanding anything contained herein io the conirary,
CROP ONE shall not be required to furnish to LEDC or to any other applicable
governmental body information which CROP ONE, in its reasonable judgment, considers
a trade secret or proprietary, including, without limitation, software, equipment,
production processes, customer lists, intellectual property, or other information
considered proprietary and confidential by separate agreements with third parties. In the
event that LEDC receives a request for information or records in the possession of LEDC
about the Facility or CROP ONE’s business affairs under the Texas Public Inforination
Act, LEDC shall timely both request a ruling from the Texas Atiorney General that such
information or records may be withheld from disclosure and shall promptly furnish
writien notice of such request to CROP ONE in order that CROP ONE shall have the
opportunity to brief the Attorney General regarding such information or records or to
otherwise challenge such request nrior to disclosure.



Section 7. Dispute Resolution, Applicable Law, Venue. and Attomeys Fees

() In the event of any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or the breach of this Agreement, the parties shall attempt in good faith
to resolve the same by good faith mediation before a mediator agreed to by the
parties. LEDC and CROP ONE expressly waive any statutory or other legal

requirement that may exist for serving notices or engaging in alternative dispute
resolution prior to doing so.

(b) In the event that the claim or controversy is not settled by mediation or any other
alternative dispute resolution method agreed to by the parties, either party may
file suit in a court of competent jurisdiction sitting in the State of Texas. Venue
shall lie in Caldwell County, Texas. The prevailing party in any litigation arising
out of this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary
costs and attorney’s fees from the non-prevailing party pursuant to applicable law,

{c) In the event that CROP ONE fails to perform any monetary obligation contained
herein within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice specifying the
particulars of the default, or fails to perform any non-monetary obligation
contained herein within a reasonable time period after receipt of written notice
specifying the particulars of such default so long as CROP ONE commences and
diligently prosecutes the curing of such default within the reasonable time period,
then CROP ONE shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement and LEDC
shall be entitled o enforce all rights and remedies at law or in equity against
CROP ONE. The curative rights stated in the immediately preceding sentence
shall complement all other curative rights expressly stated in this Agreement.

Section 8. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, when exccuted, contains the entire agreement between LEDC
and CROP ONE with respect to the transactions contemplated herein. This Agreement

may be amended, altered, or revoked only by written instrument signed by LEDC and
CROP ONE.

Section 9. Successors and Assions

Neither party shall assign its rights. obli ations, or interest in this Acoreement
iy o o = 5 g ) =

without the prior written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed, except that CROP ONE shall be entitled to assign its rights and
interest coniained in this Agreement without such written conseni of the LEDC provided
that such assignment does not release CROP ONE from liability under this Agreement
and such assignment will not prejudice the interests of LEDC and is to an affiliate, parent
or subsidiary of CROP ONE, a party to whom such assignment is required in order to
secure funding or financing of the Facility and project, or such fransfer is a sale of the

business or project and both will continue in the orcinary course of business. In the event
of such assignment or in the event of tegal succession of CROP ONE interest in this



Agreement by operation of law, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the
benefit of such assign or successcr.

Section 10. Notices

Any notice and/or statement required and permitted to be delivered shall be
deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following
addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter:

CROP ONE:
Chief Financial Officer
2076 Zanker Road
San Jose, CA 95131

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation:
President
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation
308 W. San Antonio
P.O. Box 239
Lockhart, TX 78644

Section 11. Interpretation

Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the
event of dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and
neither more strongly for or against either party.

Section 12. Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable under present or future laws, then and in that event it is the intention of the
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and it is
also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or provision
that is found to be iilegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this
Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to
the provision found o be illegal, invalid, or unenforceabie.

Section 13. Mutual Assistance

LEDC and CROP ONE agree to do all things reasonably necessary and
appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and assist
each other in carrying out such terms and provisions.

Section 14, Representations and Warranties of LEDC.

LEDC hereby represents warrants and covenants that:

7



(a) It is a Type B Economic Development Corporation, duly organized and validl

i
existing under the laws of the State, particularly Sections 501 and 5035 of the
Texas Local Government Code.,

(b) The Facility constitutes a “project” as defined in Sections 501.101 and 505.155 of
the Texas Local Government Code.

(¢) All requirements related to public notice of the project, particularly those included
in Section 505.160 of the Texas Local Government Code, have been satisfied.

]
~ IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on
the_fxf_f’”«_ﬁdayofﬁﬂuggwaf ,2018.

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION:

?

i

7 A s
e etk £4 s

Vance Rodgers, LEDC President

ATTEST:

i/,_/" ; p— ‘;5%{ ’_.“g,/“
e f AT Y

Rébért Tobias,’L:EDC Secretary

CROP ONE HOLDINGS, INC.;

Dave Vosburg, Chief Financial Officer

5t



State of Texas 8
§
County of Caldwell  §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

R » 2018, by Vance Rodgers, known to me to be the President of the
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation of Lockhart, Texas on behalf of that
corporation.

T

I\}otéry Public State of Texas

ANDREA DAVILA .. .
Notary ID #131341530 My Commission expires:

My Commission Expires
November 6. 2021

LY

State of Texas §
§
County of &
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

, 2018, by Dave Vosburg, known to me to be the Chief Financial Officer
of CROP ONE HOLDINGS, INC., a Texas Limited Liability Corporation, acting on
behalf of such corporation.

Notary Public State of Texas

My Commission expires:




POTENTIAL VALUE OF INCENTIVES PACKAGE
PROSPECT: PROJECT SOAR
APPROVED BY LEDC ON May 21, 2018

Incentives to locate $15 million project to Lockhart with 50 FTE jobs with an average annual wage of $35,000; total payroll of $1.75 miilion

LEDC INCENTIVES PROPOSED: INCENTIVE AMOUNTS UP TO:
* Reimburse company for purchase of 5 acres of land adjacent to SH
130 frontage nerth bound just north of railroad line including surveying,

subdividing, and legal fees $392,040
** Reimburse impact, building/inspection fees, water/sewer taps $59,009
Transformers (with proof of cost to company) $40,000

LEDC INCENTIVES PROPOSED UP TO: $491,04%

* LEDC will reimburse company 50% of $491,049 upon proof of $10
million facility investment and issuance of a Certifcate of Occupancy;
reimbursement is % ratio based on investment

**Remainder of $491,029 to be reimbursed upon proof of new jobs
creation; reimbursement is % ratio base on job creation

All above potentiol incentives approved by LEDC on 5-21-2018 but
subject to final approval by City Council

%

8/6/2018C:\Users\rtobias\Docurments\Project Soar\071018 LEDC Incentives for Res 2018-05 Project Soar Appraved.xlsx









RESOLUTION NO. 2018-14

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL APPROVING
THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION TG
MOVE FORWARD WITH THE PURSUIT OF FUNDING FOR THE
ACQUISITION OF A 13862 ACRE PARCEL AND REQUIRED
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF AN INDUSTRIAL
PARK UNDER THE TEXAS FECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ACT OF 1979, AS AMENDED, FOR INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS THAT ARE REQUIRED OR SUITABLE FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT, RETENTION, OR EXPANSION OF FACILITIES TO
PROMOTE OR DEVELOP NEW OR EXPANDED BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES, AND TO CREATE AND MAINTAIN NEW JOBS

WHEREAS, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation (“LEDC”) is a Type B corporation

created and operated pursuant to the Texas Economic Development Act of 1979, as amended (“the Act”™)
and

WHEREAS, the Act provides for the funding of certain projects for the development, retention, or
expansion of facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to promote
or develop new or expanded business enterprises, create or retain jobs within the state, promote new or

expanded business development, and construct infrastructural improvements for new or expanded business
enterprises; and

WHEREAS, LEDC approved a project named PROJECT SOAR (CROP ONE HOLDINGS) after
proper public notice and a public hearing on August 6, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the LEDC has determined that this investment {(a) meets the requirements for
a project under the Act; (b) serves as a public purpose by contributing to the development,
retention, or expansion facilities, including expenditures required or suitable for infrastructure
necessary to promote or develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to the creation or
retention of jobs within the City, County and State: and {¢) should be approved and funded.

NGW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL
THAT:

SECTION 1. The facis and findings described in the preamble of this resolutio
incorporated herein as if fully set out.

noare

SECTION 2. The infrastructure improvements, project costs and other associated
development costs are HEREBY APPROVED as follows:

The LEDC shall pay up to $1.50 per square foot for 13.862 acres and instal} access
easement infrastructure estimated at $200,000 and other related development costs subject to ihe

Resolution No. 2018-14

47



conditions as set out in Exhibit A Economic Development Performance Agreement attached hereto
and i Chapters 501, 504, and 505 of the Texas Economic Development Corporation Act of 1979,

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Lockhart City Council held on this

day of ,2018.

City of Lockhart

Lew White, Mayor
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Connie Constancio, TRMC Peter Gruning, City Attorney

City Secretary

Resolution No. 2018-14



DRAFT

Motion 1o approve the sale of Lot 48. 1806 acre tract in the Lockhart idustrial Park 11 al the
price of 575 241 o Hill Cownry Foodworks, [ne. for expansion of the existing business with
creation of new jobs.

Motion: Alfredo Munoz Secand: Morris Alexander Fote: 8 of 6 to approve

EXECUTIVE SESSION in accordance with _the provisions of the Government Code, Title 5,
Subchapter D. Section 551.072 to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if

deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental
body in negotiations with a third person.

Open Execurive Sessionar: __6:31 P M.

5. A. Discussion to consider the purchase of 13.682 acres along SH-130 for the
development of an industrial park.

Close Executive Session at: _6.47 P. 3,

6. OPEN SESSION

A. Discussion and/or action to consider the purchase of 13.682 acres along SH-130 for the
development of an industrial park.

Motion to aurhorize Vance Rodgers, LEDC President, 1o purchase 13.682 acres for $1.30 per
squure fool along eust frontage roud of SH-130 just north of the railroad and further to secure
funds for the purchase aid 1o construct an access edsement to satisfy the requirements of the
simple plet process for the development of an industricl park

Motion: Alfredo Munoz Second: Morris Alexander Fote: 6 of 6 to approve

7. DISCUSSION ONLY

A. Overview of Tax Increment Financing District and its potential impact on facilitating
developments throughout the City.

Presentation regarding the development of a Tax [ncrement Financing district.

8. ADJOURN
Modion 1o adiourn:

Morion: Alfredo Munoz Second: Nic Invin Fore: 6 of 6

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDC)
MINUTES
Maonday, August 6, 2018 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL - UPSTAIRS
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET

Page 3 of 4

NN
ASA



Concept Draft

0 200 400

N fcet

Legend
- RailRoad

—--—-= ility Easements

543 Acres

i'..' _'_-! Access Easement

D Property Boundary

2

13.682 Acres







DRAFT
C. DISCUSS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH CAPITAL AREA EMERGENCY
COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT FOR GOOD AND SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH THE
DELIVERY OF 911 SERVICE OR THE PUBLIC SAFETY ANSWERING POINT (PSAP) FOR
THE CITY OF LOCKHART AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED $1,000 AND APPOINTING THE
MAYOR TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT.
Mr. Rodgers stated that the Capital Area Emergency Communications District (CAEDC) provided goods
and services for the Lockhart 9-1-1 system. This is often referred to as the PSAP or Public Safety Answering
Point. The cost is not to exceed $1.000 for the FY 2018-2019 period. Mr. Rodgers recommended approval.

D. DISCUSS AWARDING ELECTRICAL PRIMARY TREE TRIMMING SERVICES BID IN
THE AMOUNT OF $40,800.00 TO THE ARBOR EXPERTS OF WEBSTER, TEXAS, AND
APPOINTING THE MAYOR TO SIGN ALL RELATED DOCUMENTS.

Mr. Rodgers stated that even with consistent advertising. the electrical primary tree trimming employee
budgeted position has not been filled. There have been several applicants, but none were qualified and did
not have the experience required in this safety sensitive position. Because of this, bids were advertised in
compliance with State law for professional companies that provide these critical services to help avoid
power outages due to limbs on power lines. Two bids were received from well-known professional
companies. The Arbor Experts submitted the best bid of $40,800. This company has worked for the City
before and performed the work in a timely and safe manner with the budget allowed. Work will be
completed by September 30, 2018. The company has the required general liability and workers’
compensation insurance to protect the City. Mr. Rodgers recommended approval. There was brief
discussion.

E. DISCUSS RATIFYING THE LEASE NEGOTIATED WITH LOCKHART LIVESTOCK
AUCTION, LLC, CONTAINING THE TERMS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE CITY
COUNCIL.

Mr. Rodgers stated that after several months of discussions in person and via email. an amended lease
agreement with the Lockhart Livestock Auction, LLC has been signed. The lease contains the provisions
desired by Council when they gave the City Manager approval to pursue the amended lease. The lease is
for 15 years and is for 18 cents per square foot beginning December 1, 2018 and will be subject to a
consumer price index (CPI) increase annually not to exceed 3 percent. Mr. Rodgers recommended approval.
There was discussion.

F. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE CITY OF LOCKHART’S 2018 CERTIFIED PROPERTY
TAX ROLL.

Mr. Hinson stated that the City received the 2018 Certified Property Tax Rolls from the Caldwell County
Appraisal District on July 23.2018. Mr. Hinson explained and there was discussion regarding the following:

* The Appraisal Review Board (ARB) approved totals equal to $546.981.602.

» The ARB review totals of properties that are contesting property taxes totals $20.568.463.

» (Grand totals of the 2018 certitied totals equal $567.550.065.

» New property value of new homes that were not included in last year's property tax roll equals
$11.284,188. This amount is added into this vear’s tax roll total.

¢ Rollback and effective tax rates are set.

There was discussion.

RSTI
Clity Counei} - August 9, 2018

54



DRAFT
G. DISCUSSION AFTER PRESENTATION BY CITY MANAGER REGARDING PROPOSED
FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 LOCKHART/CALDWELL COUNTY EMERGENCY MEDICAL
SERVICES BUDGET.

Mr. Rodgers introduced Apryl Haynes. CEQ of Seton and James Jewell. EMS Director of Seton.

He stated that the budget that was presented reflected a loss in revenue for EMS services. Caldwell County
and the City of Lockhart share the loss by each entity paying half. Seton will return to the Council sometime
in September to request consideration of a new billing company to pursue collections.

Mayor White requested an update regarding the City of Luling’s EMS service. Mr. Rodgers explained that
the City of Luling stopped utilizing Seton EMS service thereby utilizing EMS units in Lockhart for
emergency calls on the southern part of Caldwell County. There were times when one Lockhart EMS unit
was being run in Luling. Lockhart picked up 100 percent of EMS salaries since Luling was no longer
sharing those expenses thereby creating unexpected additional expenses to Lockhart and Caldwell County
with Luling not paying their share. Wage increases are also included for paramedics in the budget in
addition to increased costs in drugs utilized during emergencies.

James Jewell, Chief of EMS, stated that the EMS is fully staffed to run two full-time EMS units. EMS is
keeping up with the growth of the community to accommodate public safety necessities.

Apryl Haynes, Chief Operating Officer for Seton Edgar B. Davis Hospital, stated that they have been
partners with Caldwell County in providing healthcare services for 52 years. Seton continues to give charity
care to many residents in Caldwell County and they are committed to continue healthcare services.

There was discussion regarding City of Luling’s current EMS service provided to their citizens in
comparison with how City of Lockhart’s EMS service is being affected due to Lockhart EMS assisting in
Luling.

H. DISCUSSION AFTER PRESENTATION BY CITY MANAGER REGARDING LOCKHART
POLICE DEPARTMENT OFFICER WAGES AND RECOMMENDED CONSIDERATIONS.

Mr. Rodgers stated that staff has now received the property tax information from the Caldwell County
Appraisal District, The City Manager told Council several times during the budget process that when the
property information was provided a recommendation regarding Police Department needed pay increases
would be provided. According to a recent salary survey. Lockhart's Police officers are generally paid 8 to
15% less than their counterparts in cities our size or larger in the area. The last adjustment to the step pay
plan in 2016 placed Lockhart within 3 to 4% of the average. but that has changed dramatically over the past
two years. In the interest of public safety in attracting and retaining officers, the difference in wages must
be addressed. The City Manager respectfully asks that Council consider providing sufficient funding to
increase the Police Step Pay Plan by 10%, which is estimated to cost $185,000. The maintenance and
operations (M&O) effective rate plus new debt equals 0.6727; a 4-cent increase to 0.7107 (current tax rate
15 $0.7260) would produce sufficient revenue to cover the additional cost should Council decide to do this.
Mr. Rodgers stated that he and the Police Chief recommend approval.

There was discussion regarding a 4-cent tax increase to allow funding to increase police salaries by 10%,
and increase non-civil service employees” wages by 3%, and to utilize remaining funds on beginning the
renovation process at 728 South Main Street property. The Mayor polled the Council about using the
revenue produced from the 4 cents increase above the effective M&QO rate for the Police Department officer
wage increases, and it was unanimous.

Iorg
City Counetl - August 9. 2018



DRAFT
.. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 GENERAL FUND,
ENTERPRISE FUND, DEBT FUND BUDGETS, AND PROPOSED FUNDING SOURCES AND,
DISCUSSION REGARDING THE BUDGET AND TAX RATE ADOPTION CALENDAR, IF
NECESSARY. (REMINDER: DATE TO SET TAX RATE IS AUGUST 21, 2018 AND PUBLIC
HEARING ON BUDGET AND TAX RATE IS SEPTEMBER 4, 2018 AND IF NECESSARY,
SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 REGARDING THE TAX RATE.)
Mayor White stated that the tax rate was discussed during the previous item. The consensus was to increase
the tax rate by 4 cents.

RECESS: Mayor White announced that the Council would recess for a break at 7:45 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Lew White called the regular meeting of the Lockhart City Council to order on this date at 8:00 p.m.

ITEM 2. INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
Councilmember McGregor gave the Invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States and
Texas flags.

ITEM 3. CITIZENS/VISITORS COMMENTS.

Mayor White requested citizens to address the Council regarding a comment on an issue that is not on the
agenda. There were none.

ITEM 4-A. HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON APPLICATION ZC-18-10 BY HMT ENGINEERING
& SURVEYING ON BEHALF OF COTTONWOOD COMMONS, LLC, FOR A ZONING
CHANGE FROM RLD RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY DISTRICT TO PDD PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, INCLUDING APPLICATION PDD-18-03, A PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR VINTAGE SPRINGS SUBDIVISION
PDD, A PROPOSED REPLAT OF LLOT 1, BLOCK 2, AND LOT 2, BLOCK 1, TEXAS HERITAGE
SUBDIVISION, CONSISTING OF A TOTAL OF 66.7 ACRES LOCATED AT 300 AND 411
MOCKINGBIRD LANE.

Mayor White opened the public hearing at 8:02 p.m. and requested the staff report.

Mr. Gibson stated that the PDD zoning classification is intended to accommodate developments with
characteristics that may deviate from normal City standards. In return for such flexibility. the PDD requires
an early commitment on the part of the developer in terms of the site layout. land uses. and amenities.
Unlike conventional zoning classifications that cannot have conditions attached. the PDD classification is
subject to the conditions represented by the development plan, which is adopted by-reference and cannot be
changed except through the rezoning process. The subject property is proposed to be replatted into generous
public open spaces and 259 residential lots that are smaller than the minimum required by the current RLD
zoning of the property. The proposed use is single-family detached residential. and the lots will be a
minimum of 50 feet wide (60 feet on comer lots). with most being at least 120 feet deep. All streets.
drainage. utilities, and parkland will meet City standards. In addition. sidewalks will be provided on both
sides of all streets. even where not required. and a ten-foot wide hike-bike trail is proposed through an
internal greenbelt in the approximate location shown on the City's sidewalk and trail plan. Although the

lots will be narrow. the houses in this subdivision are proposed to contain a minimum of three bedrooms.
4olg
City Council - August 9. 2018

o 0



DRAFT
two baths, and a two-car garage. A comparison of various aesthetic standards and landscaping provisions
were reviewed. These are amenities that the City does not require in the standard residential zoning districts.
The gross density of the subdivision of 3.88 dwelling units per acre, which is considered low density and s,
therefore. consistent with the Low Density Residential designation shown on the future land use plan map.
A previous version of this proposed development considered by the Council failed when the Council voted
5-2 in favor of a motion and second to approve, but did not have the minimum of six affirmative votes
required to override a citizen protest. The most significant changes since then is an increase in the minimum
width of the lots from 45 feet to 50 feet, which resulted in a decrease in the number of lots from 279 to 259.
T'wo people spoke against the zoning change at the Planning and Zoning Commission. Additional letters
of protest were also submitted after the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting and after the protest
submission deadline that totals 19 property owners within the 200-foot boundary. With the additional letters
of protest, the total of the owners of 16 percent of the land area within 200-feet protested, which does not
require a super-majority vote for approval.

Steven Hons of HMT Engineering explained how the firm has worked with Development Services to
commit revising the development plan to address concerns of the neighborhood.

Dan Brouilette and Tu Anh Cloteaux of DR Horton provided information regarding the homes to be built
in the subdivision and explained the layout of the homes in regard to the style, layout, floor plans and garage
elevation. Mr. Brouilette clarified that the homes that back up to Maple Street will be single story homes,

Mayor White requested citizens in favor of the zoning change to address the Council. There were none.
Mayor White requested the following citizens against the zoning change to address the Council:

Bill Stanley spoke against the zoning change. He stated that he would have generated additional individuals
against the development to protest had he known that it was not at 20 percent.

Todd Blomerth, 1105 Spruce. spoke against the zoning change. He stated that he believes that the homes
would be small and crowded and would pose an issue for emergency responses. He stated that if approved.
the Council would set a precedent for additional developers to also present a PDD that circumvents the
adopted zoning and subdivision ordinances.

Tim Schuelke spoke against the zoning change because he believes that the zoning should remain the same
because RI.D zoning requires larger lots for new residential homes. He also stated that he believes that the
property values of his home and other homes in the existing neighborhood would decrease with the new
development.

Shayne Payne. 513 St. Thomas. spoke against the zoning change because she believes that the new homes
should be similar to the existing neighborhood with larger lots and brick on all sides of the homes.

Mayor White requested additional citizens to address the Council. There were none. He closed the public
hearing at 9:07 p.m.

Suf9
City Couneil - August 9. 2018



DRAFT
ITEM 4-B. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION TO CONSIDER ORDINANCE 2018-18 AMENDING
THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS, TO RECLASSIFY THE
PROPERTY KNOWN AS LOT 1, BLOCK 2, AND LOT 2. BLOCK 1, TEXAS HERITAGE
SUBDIVISION, CONSISTING OF A TOTAL OF 66.7 ACRES LOCATED AT 300 AND 411
MOCKINGBIRD LANE, FROM RLD RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY DISTRICT TO PDD
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, INCLUDING A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT PLLAN FOR VINTAGE SPRINGS SUBDIVISION PDD.
Mayor White spoke in favor of the development because the development would be an asset to
accommodate the needs for new housing in the community.

Councilmember Mendoza spoke in favor of the development as an attraction to bring additional residents
to Lockhart.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez spoke in favor of the development because she believes that new homes are needed
in Lockhart.

Councilmember McGregor stated that she has spoken with citizens that were both against and in favor of
the development. She stated that she believes that the development should move forward and uphold the
Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation to change the percentage of houses with the garage
extending further than 10 feet in front of the porch or remainder of the house from 40% to 35%.

Councilmember Castillo spoke against the development because he is voting to accommodate the wishes of
the majority of the existing neighborhood.

Councilmember Michelson spoke in favor of the development because new homes are needed in Lockhart.
Councilmember Westmoreland stated that he believes that affordable housing is needed in Lockhart.

Mayor White made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-18. as presented and as recommended by the
Planning and Zoning Commission to limit the percentage of houses with the garage extending further than

10 feet in front of the porch or the remainder of the house to 35%. Mavor Pro-Tem Sanchez seconded. The
motion passed by a vote of 6-1, with Councilmember Castillo opposing.

ITEM 5. CONSENT AGENDA.
Councilmember Michelson made a motion to approve consent agenda items 3A, 5B, 5C, 5D. and 5E. Mavyor
Pro-Tem Sanchez seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

The following are the consent agenda items that were approved:

SA:  Approve minutes of the City Council meetings of July 12, 2018, July 14, 2018, July 17. 2018, July
26,2018 and July 31. 2018.

5B:  Accept semi-annual report from the Impact Fee Advisory Committee concerning the status of
implementation of Chapter 31 “Impact Fees™ of the Lockhart Code of Ordinances with regard to
water. wastewater. and road impact fees.

5C:  Approve Interlocal Agreement with Capital Area Emergency Communications District for good and
services associated with the delivery of 911 service or the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) for
the City of Lockhart at a cost not to exceed $1.000 and appointing the Mayor to sign the agreement.

5D:  Approve awarding electrical primary tree trimming services bid in the amount of $40.800.00 to The
Arbor Experts of Webster. Texas, and appointing the Mayor to sign all related documents.

6oty
City Counail - August 9. 2018

oA









DRAFT
Councilmember Castillo expressed condolences to Mayor White and his family for the loss of his mother-
in-law. He thanked the Lockhart Police Department for their commitment to public safety. He thanked Jeff
Hinson for his commitment to the city during his tenure and he thanked Councilmember Mendoza for
assisting with the dedication at the sports complex.

Councilmember Michelson expressed condolences to Patty and Mayor White for their loss. He also thanked
the Lockhart Police Department for their service to the community. He asked everyone to be safe during
the new school year.

Mayor White thanked staff for their work on the budget. He thanked Jeff Hinson for his commitment during
his tenure and wished him well in his future endeavors. He congratulated all involved with the sports
complex dedication. City Manager interviews will be held on August 18 and 19. 2018. He thanked al] that
hosted and attended National Night Out block parties.

Councilmember Castillo reminded everyone to attend the Movie in the Park this Saturday. August 11.

ITEM 9. ADJOURNMENT,
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Mendoza seconded. The
motion passed by a vote of 7-0. The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 p.m.

PASSED and APPROVED this the 21% day of August 2018.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor
ATTEST:

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

Gore
City Ceuncil - August 9. 2018

S\









II. Severability: If any provision. section, clause. sentence, or phrase of this ordinance
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, void, invalid, or un-enforced. the validity of
the remainder of this ordinance or its application shall not be affected, it being the intent
of the City Council in adopting and of the Mayor in approving this ordinance that no
portion, provision, or regulation contained herein shall become inoperative or fail by way
of reasons of any unconstitutionality or invalidity of any other portion, provision, or
regulation.

[IL Repealer:  That all other ordinances, section, or parts of ordinances heretofore
adopted by the City of Lockhart in conflict with the provisions set out above in this
ordinance are hereby repealed or amended as indicated.

IV. It 1s hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance
was passed was open to the public as required by law,

V. Publication: That the City Secretary is directed to cause the caption of this ordinance
to be published in a newspaper of general circulation according to law.

VI. Effective Date: This ordinance shall become effective and be in full force on August
21, 2018.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LOCKHART, TEXAS, ON THIS THE 21 DAY OF AUGUST, 2018.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Connie Constancio. TRMC. Citv Secretarv Peter Gruning, City Attorney o
Ordinance 2018-19 2 of 2









Texas Local Government Code Chapter 143.014

Sec. 143.014. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF PERSON CLASSIFIED IMMEDIATELY
BELOW DEPARTMENT HEAD. (a) This section does not apply to a municipality with a
population of 1.5 million or more.

(b) If approved by the governing body of the municipality by resolution or ordinance, the
head of a fire or police department in the municipality in which at least four classifications
exist below the classification of department head may appoint each person occupying an
authorized position in the classification immediately below that of department head, as
prescribed by this section. The classification immediately below that of department head
may include a person who has a different title but has the same pay grade.

(¢) In a police department, the total number of persons appointed to the classification
immediately below that of department head may not exceed the total number of persons,
plus one, serving in that classification on January 1, 1983. In a fire department in a
municipality having fewer than 300 certified fire fighters, the department head may
appoint not more than one person to the classification immediately below that of
department head. If a municipality has 300 to 600 certified fire fighters, the department
head may appoint two persons to the classification. If a municipality has more than 600
certified fire fighters, the department head may appoint three persons to the classification.
This subsection does not apply to a municipality that has adopted The Fire and Police
Employee Relations Act (Article 5154¢-1, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes) unless the
municipality specifically adopts the appointment procedure prescribed by this subsection
through the collective bargaining process.

(d) A person appointed to a position in the classification immediately below that of the
head of the police department must:
(1) be employed by the municipality's police department as a sworn police officer;
(2) have at least two years' continuous service in that department as a sworn police
officer; and
(3) meet the requirements for appointment as head of a police department
prescribed by Section 143.013(b).

(e) A person appointed to a position in the classification immediately below that of the
head of the fire department must:

(1) be employed by the municipality's fire department:;

(2) have a permanent classification in at least an officer level: and

(3) meet the requirements for appointment as head of a fire department prescribed
by Section 143.013(b).

(f) The department head shall make each appointment under this section within 90 days
after the date a vacancy occurs in the position.

() A person appointed under this section serves at the pleasure of the department head.
A person who is removed from the position by the department head shall be reinstated in

N



the department and placed in the same classification, or its equivalent, that the person held
before appointment. The person retains all rights of seniority in the department.

(h) If a person appointed under this section is charged with an offense in violation of civil
service rules and indefinitely suspended by the department head, the person has the same
rights and privileges of a hearing before the commission in the same manner and under
the same conditions as a classified employee. If the commission, a hearing examiner, or
a court of competent jurisdiction finds the charges to be untrue or unfounded, the person
shall immediately be restored to the same classification, or its equivalent, that the person
held before appointment. The person has all the rights and privileges of the prior position
according to seniority, and shall be repaid for any lost wages.

{1) A person serving under permanent appointment in a position in the classification
immediately below that of the department head on September 1, 1983, is not required to
meet the requirements of this section or to be appointed or reappointed as a condition of

tenure or continued employment.

Acts 1987, 70th Leg., ch. 149, Sec. 1, eff. Sept. 1, 1987.

17
























SCOPE OF SERVICES
Unarmed, uniformed security guard at Lockhart Library, 217 S. Main,
Lockhart
Officer stationed in a highly visible location within the perimeter of Library

Officer reviews security camera surveillance, and performs periodic foot
patrols of the facility to promote safety, detect suspicious and abnormal
activity, corrects unruly behavior, and takes action as appropriate working
with Library Director, staff, and Lockhart Police

MWF 2pm-6:30pm on days Lockhart ISD is in session
MWF 10am-6:30pm on days Lockhart ISD NOT in session
TH 2pm-8:30pm on days Lockhart ISD is in session

TH 10am-8:30pm on days Lockhart 1SD is NOT is session
Sat 9am-3:30pm

Sun - Closed, no guard

Estimated work hours:

September 2018
Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
9/1/18 6.5
9/3-9/8 0 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5
9/10-9/15 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5
9/17-9/22 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 138
9/24-9/29 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 8.5 6.5
October 2018
Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat
10/1-10/6 4.5 6.5 45 6.5 45 6.5
10/8-10/13 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5
10/15-10/20 85 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 1515
10/22-10/27 4.5 6.5 45 6.5 45 6.5
10/29-10/31 4.5 6.5 4.5



November 2018

11/1-11/3
11/5-11/10
11/12-11/17
11/19-11/24
11/26-11/30

December 2018

12/1
12/3-12/8
12/10-12/15
12/17-12/22
12/24-12/29
12/31

January 2019

1/1-1/5
1/7-1/12
1/14-1/19
1/21-1/26
1/28-1/31

February 2019

2/1-2/2
2/4-2/9
2/11-2/16
2/18-2/23
2/25-2/28

Mon

45

8.5

4.5

Mon

45

4.5

45

8.5

Mon

8.5
4.5

4.5

Mon

45
45

4.5

Tues

6.5
6.5
10.5
6.5

Tues

6.5
6.5
6.5

0

Tues
10.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Tues

6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Wed

45
4.5
85
4.5

Wed

4.5
4.5
45
8.5

Wed
8.5
4.5
4.5
4.5
4.5

Wed

4.5
4.5
4.5
45

Thurs
6.5
6.5
6.5

6.5

Thurs

6.5
6.5
10.5
105

Thurs
10.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Thurs

6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Fri
45
45
4.5

4.5

Fri

4.5
4.5
8.5
8.5

Fri
8.5
4.5
4.5
4.5

Fri
45
4.5
85
45

Sat
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Sat
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Sat
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Sat
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

139.5

156

165

131.5



March 2019

Mon
3/1-3/2
3/4-3/9 45
3/11-3/16 4.5
3/18-3/23 8.5
3/25-3/30 45
April 2019

Mon
4/1-4/6 4.5
4/8-4/13 4.5
4/15-4/20 4.5
4/22-4/27 4.5
4/29-4/30 4.5
May 2019

Mon

5/1-5/4
5/6-5/11 4.5
5/13-5/18 4.5
5/20-5/25 4.5
5/27-5/31 0
June 2019

Mon
6/1
6/3-6/8 85
6/10-6/15 8.5
6/17-6/22 8.5
6/24-6/29 8.5

Tues

Tues

6.5
6.5
10.5
6.5

Tues
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

6.5
6.5
6.5
10.5

Tues

10.5
10.5
105
10.5

Wed

Wed

45
4.5
8.5
4.5

Wed
4.5
4.5
4.5
4.5

4.5
4.5
45
4.5
8.5

Wed

B.5
8.5
8.5
85

Thurs

6.5
6.5
10.5
6.5

Thurs
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Thurs

6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
10.5

Thurs

10.5
10.5
10.5
10.5

Fri
4.5
4.5
4.5
8.5
45

Fri
4.5
4.5

4.5

Sat
45
4.5
4.5
8.5
8.5

Fri

8.5
85
85
8.5

Sat
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Sat
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

Sat
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.5

163

138.5

163

218.5

47






STATE OF TEXAS )

) CITY OF LOCKHART
COUNTY OF CALDWELL )

SECURITY GUARD SERVICES AGREEMENT

This agreement will begin on » 2018, by and between the City of Lockhart, Texas (the
City) and Texas Regional Protective Services (the Contractor), licensed by the Texas Department of
Public Safety pursuant to Texas Occupations Code, Secs. {702 et. seq., to provide security services for the
City’s Dr. Eugene Clark Library (the Library), 217 South Main Street, Lockhart, Texas, including library
buildings, surrounding library grounds, and adjacent parking areas. References to the LISD refer to the
Lockhart Independent School District.

L. Contractor Services: The Contractor will perform the following services for the City at the Library:

I.I The Contractor will provide unarmed, uniformed, state licensed security guards according to the
following schedule: .

MWE: 2 p.m. — 6:30 p.m. on days when the LISD is in session.

MWE: 10 a.m. - 6:30 p.m. on days when the LISD is not in session.

TH: 2 p.m.~8:30 p.m. on days when the LISD is in session.

TH: 10 a.m. — 8:30 p.m. on days when the LISD is not in session.

SAT: 9am. -3:30pm.

SUN: No security guard—Library is closed.
The above schedule may be amended upon mutual agreement between the City and the Contractor,
The City will provide the Contractor with the LISD session schedules as they are made available by the
LISD. If the Contractor is unsure if the LISD is in or not in session on a particular date, the Contractor will
contact the LISD and the Library to determine the hours when security services are to be provided.
1.2 The Centractor will;

{a) Abide by the Texas Department of Public Safety licensing requirements.

(b) Follow the City’s and the Library's rules. guidelines, and procedures, where these are
provided.

44



(¢) Periodically conduct checks of adjacent parking areas and library grounds, as well as of
locations within library buildings.

{d) Respond to calls for assistance by City staff, Library staff and the public, and provide
assistance if incidents occur in the Library, surrounding grounds, and adjacent parking areas.

(e) Conduct physical searches of property {e.g.: bags, purses, coats, backpacks, briefcases, etc.)
as necessary in order to maintain the safety of library staff, the public, and the security guard.

(D) Carry portable radios supplied by the City to keep in communication with Library staff, and
immediately report any malfunctioning radio.

(g) Maintain a log of incidents, immediately report incidents involving assaultive behavior or other
criminal activity to Library staff and/or the Lockhart Police Depariment, and provide copies of
incident reports to the Library and/or the City.

{h) Maintain order in the Library buildings, surrounding library grounds, and adjacent parking
areas, and secure and protect Library property.

(1) Notify the Library staff of any hazards or unsafe conditions.
{j) Perform other reasonable security guard duties that are requested by the Library.
1.3 The Contractor is responsible for the direct supervision of all security guard personnel.

1.4 The Contractor warrants that the Contractor is certified, approved and/or licensed by all Federal, State
and/or local agencies or departments that have jurisdiction to regulate all activity performed by the
Contractor. Contractor will abide by all rules, guidelines and procedures set forth by such agencies or
departments. Proof of such certification, approval or licensure will be provided to the City within five (5)
days of exeeution of this agreement. The Contractor warrants he/she will maintain and renew the
certification, approval and/or licensure, and will immediately contact the City and the Library if the
Contractor is no longer certified, approved and/or licensed. Loss or termination of such certification,
approval and/or licensure will immediately terminate this agreement.

1.5 The Contractor will not assign any employee/agent to the Library who has been convicted of any felony
or has been convicted of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude. The Contractor will ensure, to the
extent allowed by law, that the Contractor has conducted criminal background checks on all
employees/agents assigned to the Library, and that nothing revealed by the background checks creates a
reasonable doubt about the use of the employees/agents as security guards at the Library. The Contractor
acknowledges that young children and adolescents frequent the Library and must have a safe environment.

1.6 The Contractor will be fully responsible for payment of any and all taxes and insurance, including, but
not limited to income taxes and payroll taxes (such as FICA and Unemployment Insurance, etc.} and will
make such statutory filings as may be required by law.

t2

\S\_‘



1.7 The Contractor will ensure that each of its security guards will become familiar with the Library and
Library personnel on or before the first day that a security guard begins security services at the Library.

1.8 The Contractor will obtain Workers® Compensation insurance coverage for its employees, and have a
liability insurance policy listing the City as a named insured, with coverage in the amounts of $50,000 for
property damage, and $500,000 per person/ $1,000,000 per occurrence for personal injury, including death.
Proof of such coverage is required prior to commencing any work hereunder.

1.9 Security guards will wear a uniform provided by the Contractor. Uniforms will have a professional
appearance and be worn clean and wrinkle-free. Uniforms will display proper security identification such
as security logo and/badge or name tag, and must be approved by the Texas Security Bureau.

1.10 The Contractor will provide the Library with a list of names of personnel assigned to the Library. If
there is a change in staffing and new personnel arg assigned, the Contractor. will notify the Library and
provide the names of the new employees prior to starting their assignments.

1.11 The City and the Library reserve the right, at either’s sole diseretion and for any reasonable ground,
to require the Contractor to remove any seeurity guard and provide a suitable replacement.

2, Compensation and Invoices: The City will pay the Contractor $17.00 per hour, per security guard, for
security guard services at the Library. The Contractor will submit claims or invoices, bearing Contractor’s
letterhead, no later than five (5) days from the last day of the month for which payment is requested. The
invoice will provide the number of hours worked per day, per security officer, and will be signed and dated
by authorized personnel. The Contractor will maintain an on-site time sheet with a copy of such
accompanying each invoice.

3. Records:

3.1 The Contractor will maintain and make available for inspection, audit or reproduction. by an authorized
representative of City, documents and other evidence pertaining to the cost and expenses for this agreement
(the Records).

3.2 The Contractor will maintain financial and supporting documents, statistical records and any other
records pertinent to the serviges for which a claim or expense report has been submitted. The records and
documents must be kept for a minimum of three years after the end of the contract period. If any litigation,
claim or audit involving these records commences before the three year period expires. the Contractor must
keep records and documents for not less than three years or until all litigation, claims or audit findings are
resolved.

4. Payment by the City: Each invoice submitted by the Contractor per paragraph 2 of this agreement will
be paid within 30 days of receipt by the City. If a conflict arises regarding a billing amount, the City will
pay all uncontested amounts and will give written notice of the conflict to the Contractor within three

(S



business days of the City’s discover of the conflict. The parties will work in good faith to resolve a conflict
about a billing amount.

S. Term, Termination and Notice:

5.1 Term: This agreement will be effective on the date noted above and will continue through September
30, 2019. This agreement may be renewed for one year periods, at the $17.00 hourly fee charge, upon
mutual written agreement of the parties prior to the expiration of the initial or any subsequent term, if
funding is appropriated within the budget by the City Council for the service to continue.

5.2 Termination: Either party may terminate this agreement giving thirty (30) days written notice to the
other party. The City may immediately terminate this agreement without notice in the event that the
Contractor materially breaches a provision of this agreement. Contractor will cease to incur costs associated
with this agreement upon termination or receipt of wriiteni-notice to terminate, whichever occurs first.

5.3 Notice: Notices required by this agreement, or by state or federal law, will be mailed by certified mail,
return receipt, or by facsimile, to:

For the City and the Library:

City Manager Director of Library Services
City of Lockhart Dr. Eugene Clark Library
308 West San Antonio Street 217 South Main Street
Lockhart, Texas 78644 Lockhart, Texas 78644
Facsimile: 512-398-5103 Facsimile: 512-398-8316

For the Contractor;

Mr. William Ward

Texas Regional Protective Services
1055 Spoke Hollaw Road
Lockhart, Texas 78644

Facsimile: 512-

6. Independent Contracter: Nothing contained herein will be construed as creating the relationship of

employer and employee between the City/Library and the Contractor. The Contractor will be deemed at all
times to be an independent contractor.

7. Assignment: The Contractor will not sell. assign, transfer or convey this agreement. in whole or in part,
without the prior written consent of City.

8. Venue: This agreement will be governed and construed according to the laws of the state of Texas. This
agreement is performable in the City of Lockhart, Texas.

ol












Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered between Dr. Eugene Clark Library and the Universal Substance
Abuse Prevention (YPU) Program, Positive Action, provided by Connections Individual and Family Services, Inc., for
the purpose of integrating Dr. Eugene Clark Library services with YPU services. The services provided by the YPU
program will benefit eligible at-risk youth ages 6-18.

Connections” YPU Program will provide prevention activities focusing on reducing risk factors and increasing
protective factors linked to substance abuse and related problem behaviors by the use of evidenced based
curriculum and prevention related strategies. The activities include but are not limited to: Prevention
Education/Skills Training in schools and community programs through the use of Alternative Activities focusing on
teaching recreational alternatives to youth and families, (games to team and promote team building, crossword
puzzles, coloring pages, etc.); participation in community activities such as but not limited to: Fall Festival, Red
Ribbon Week, and; parent education and skills training; Prevention Presentations; Minors and Tobacco Education
and Presentations {such as the Tar lar, Chernicals, Poisons and Cancerous Agents in a Cigarette, etc.); and Alcohol
and Other Drug Presentations (such as Using Medicine Safely etc) problem identification and referral services.

Dr. Eugene Clark Library will provide referrals for YPU services and assistance in obtaining consent forms when
necessary. Dr. Eugene Clark_Library will facilitate the access of YPU services to individuals who meet YPU
admission criteria. This agreement will benefit the community by enabling residents to obtain prevention services
in a more effective manner and to assist at-risk youth and families to develop more positive skills for tiving.

Term and Termination:
The terms of this memorandum of understanding shall begin September 01, 2018 and will end on August 31, 2019.

Amendment and Modification:

This agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the parties hereto in writing and to be attached and
incorporated into this agreement.

in witness whereof, this memorandum of understanding has been executed by the authorized representative on
the day of 2018,

Kellie Statlings, Executive Director Vance Rodgers, City Manager Date
Connections Individual & Family Services, Inc. Dr. Eugene Clark Library

United §
Way £ =4



Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered between Dr. Eugene Clark Library and the Selective Substance
Abuse Prevention (YPS) Program, Curriculum Based Support Group (CBSG), provided by Connections Individual and
Family Services, Inc., for the purpose of integrating Dr. Eugene Clark Library services with YPS services. The
services provided by the YPS program will benefit eligible at-risk youth ages 6-17.

Connections’ YPS Program will provide prevention activities focusing on reducing risk factors and tncreasing
protective factors linked to substance abuse and related problem behaviars by the use of evidenced based
curriculum and prevention related strategies. The activities include but are not limited to: Prevention
Education/Skills Training in schools and community programs through the use of Alternative Activities focusing on
teaching recreational alternatives to youth and families, (games to team and promote team building, crossword
puzzies, coloring pages, etc.); participation in community activities such as but not limited to: Fall Festival, Red
Ribbon Week, and; parent education and skills training; Prevention Presentations; Minors and Tobacco Education
and Presentations (such as the Tar Jar, Chemicals, Poisons and Cancerous Agents in a Cigarette, etc.); and Alcohal
and Other Drug Presentations (such as Using Medicine Safely etc) problem identification and referral services. Dr,
Eugene Clark Library will provide referrats for YPS services and assistance in obtaining consent forms when
necessary. Dr. Eugene Clark Library will facilitate the access of YPS services to individuals who meet YPS admission
criteria. This agreement will benefit the community by enabling residents to obtain prevention services in a more
effective manner and to assist at-risk youth and families to develop more positive skills for living.

Term and Termination:
The terms of this memorandum of understanding shall begin September 01, 2018 and will end on August 31, 2019,

Amendment and Modification:

This agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the parties hereto in writing and to be attached and
incorporated into this agreement.

In witness whereof, this memorandum of understanding has been executed by the authorized representative an
the day of 2018.

Keilie Staliings, Executive Director Vance Rodgers, City Manager Date
Connections Individual & Family Services, Inc. Dr. Eugene Clark Library

~ Way RS2






Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered between Lockhart Parks and Recreation and the Universal
Substance Abuse Prevention (YPU) Program, Positive Action, provided by Connections Individual and Family
Services, Inc,, for the purpose of integrating Lockhart Parks and Recreation services with YPU services. The
services provided by the YPU program will benefit eligible at-risk youth ages 6-18.

Connections’ YPU Program will provide prevention activities focusing on reducing risk factors and increasing
protective factors linked to substance abuse and related problem behaviors by the use of evidenced based
curriculum and prevention related strategies. The activities include but are not limited to: Prevention
Education/Skills Training in schools and community programs through the use of Alternative Activities focusing on
teaching recreational alternatives to youth and families, (games to team and promote team building, crossword
puzzles, coloring pages, etc.); participation in community activities such as but not limited to: Fall Festival, Red
Ribbon Week, and; parent education and skills training; Prevention Presentations; Minors and Tobacco Education
and Presentations (such as the Tar Jar, Chemicals, Peisons and Cancerous Agents in a Cigarette, etc.}); and Aleohol
and Other Drug Presentations (such as Using Medicine Safely etc) problem identification and referral services.

Lockhart Parks and Recreation will provide referrals for YPU services and assistance in obtaining consent forms
when necessary. Lockhart Parks and Recreation will facifitate the access of YPU services to individuals who meet
YPU admission criteria. This agreement will benefit the community by enabling residents to obtain prevention

services in a mare effective manner and to assist at-risk youth and families to develop more positive skills for
living.

Term and Termination:
The terms of this memorandum of understanding shall begin September 01, 2018 and will end on August 31, 2019.

Amendment and Modification:

This agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the parties hereto in writing and to be attached and
incorporated into this agreement.

In witness whereof, this memorandum of understanding has been executed by the authorized representative on
the day of 2018.

Kellie Stallings, Executive Director Vance Rodgers, City Manager Date
Connections Individua! & Family Services, inc. Lockhart Parks and Recreation

S 14



Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered between Lockhart Parks and Recreation and the Selective
Substance Abuse Prevention (YPS) Program, Curriculum Based Support Group {CBSG), provided by Connections
tndividual and Family Services, Inc., for the purpose of integrating Lockhart Parks and Recreation services with YPS
services. The services provided by the YPS program will benefit eligible at-risk youth ages 6-17.

Connections’ YPS Program will provide prevention activities focusing on reducing risk factors and increasing
protective factors linked to substance abuse and related problem behaviors by the use of evidenced bhased
curriculum and prevention related strategies. The activities include but are not limited to: Prevention
Education/Skills Training in schools and community programs through the use of Alternative Activities focusing on
teaching recreational alternatives to youth and families, {(games to team and promote team building, crossword
puzzles, coloring pages, etc.); participation in community activities such as but not limited to: Fall Festival, Red
Ribbon Week, and; parent education and skills training; Prevention Presentations; Minors and Tobacco Education
and Presentations (such as the Tar Jar, Chemicals, Poisons and Cancerous Agents in a Cigarette, etc.); and Alcohol
and Other Drug Presentations {such as Using Medicine Safely etc) problem identification and referrat services. Dr.
Lockhart Parks and Recreation will provide referrals for YPS services and assistance in obtaining consent forms
when necessary. Lockhart Parks and Recreation will facilitate the access of YPS services to individuals who meet
YPS admission criteria. This agreement will benefit the community by enabling residents to obtain prevention

services in a more effective manner and to assist at-risk youth and families to develop more positive skills For
living.

Term and Termination:
The terms of this memorandum of understanding shall begin September 01, 2018 and will end on August 31, 2019.

Amendment and Modification:

This agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the parties hereto in writing and to be attached and
incorporated into this agreement.

In witness whereof, this memorandum of understanding has been executed by the authorized representative on
the day of 2018,

Kellie Stallings, Executive Director Vance Rodgers, City Manager Date
Connections Individual & Family Services, Inc. Lockhart Parks and Recreation

United
Way £ =2

5












subject to the conditions as set out in Exhibit A Economic Development Performance
Agreement attached hereto and in Chapters 501, 504, and 505 of the Texas Economic
Development Corporation Act of 1979,

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Lockhart City Council held on this

day of , 2018.

City of Lockhart

Lew White, Mayor
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Connie Constancio, TRMC Peter Gruning, City Attorney

City Secretary

Reselation No. 201R8-12

3%






Section 2: Term

The term of this Agreement shaii be ten {(10) vears from the 1°' day of the month
following the beginning of business operations by PROJECT OKLAHOMA. When used
hereafter, the phrase “duration of this Agreement” shall mean the term as defined above,

Section 3. LEDC Requirements

In consideration of PROJECT OKLAHOMA agreement to locate its business
within the City and to perform the other acts hereinafter described, LEDC agrees it will;

(a) To provide incentives up to $427,500 for developments and other associated
costs, which will create up to 71 FTE jobs with an average annual wage of
$75,000 per year which are subject to the conditions set out herein and in
Chapter 505 of the Local Government Code (formerly Section 4B, of the
Texas Economic Development Corporation Act of 1979). The amount of
financial benefit that PROJECT OKLAHOMA will retain from the LEDC
project funds is subject to the number of jobs created, as described in attached
Potential Value of Incentives Package.

Section 4. PROJECT OKLAHOMA Requirements

In consideration of LEDC agreeing to perform the foregoing, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA agrees:

(a) To purchase the building at 1400 FM-20 {Blackjack Street) and for other
related improvements valued at $4 million in City of Lockhart;

(b) To begin operation within 120 days of agreement;

(¢) To employ a minimum of 71 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE”) employees at an
average annual wage of $75,000 for the (10) ten-year period of this
agreement. The term “Full Time Equivalent,” as used in this Agreement,
shall mean employment worked by one or more people during a calendar year
that is equal to a total of at least 2,080 hours;

(d) To keep current in the payment of taxes owed to any taxing jurisdiction in
which the Property is located.

Section 5. Recapture/Termination

(a) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA begins operating its business, but
subsequently discontinues operating its business in such for any reason (a
“Business Interruption”), except as a result of fire, explosion, or other casualty or
accident, force majeure or other natural disaster, war or civil unrest, a taking
under eminent domain, regulatory restrictions of any applicable governmenta!
entity which makes conduct of the PROJECT OKLAHOMA illegal or



economically untenable, or other event beyond the reasonable control of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA: (the “Business Interruption Exceptions™) for a period
of more than one hundred eighty (180) days during the duration of this
Agreement, then in such event PROJECT OKILAHOMA shall be required to
repay to LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thinty (30) days of written demand therefore following the
expiration of such period.

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to repay the LEDC within
thirty (30) days of the date such repayment is due, PROJECT OKLAHOMA
hereby agrees that the LEDC may place a lien on the Properties for full
repayment of any monies expended. The burden shall be upon PROJECT
OKLAHOMA to prove to the satisfaction of the LEDC that the discontinuance
of operating its business was a result of one of the Business Interruption
Exceptions. In the event PROJECT OKLAHOMA meets this burden and the
LEDC is satisfied that the discontinuance of the operation of the manufacturing
facility was the result of events beyond the control of PROJECT OKLAHOMA,
the parties shall commemorate such satisfaction in a document signed and dated
by the Parties. PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall then have a period of one (1) year
from the date operations of its business were discontinued in which to resume
business operations.

(¢) In the event that foliowing a Business Interruption which may reasonably be cured
within one year of the cessation of business operations, business operations fail to
resume within one (1) year, PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall be required to repay
LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this Agreement
within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the expiration of the
one year period. In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shail fail to timely
repay the LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees that the LEDC may
place a lien on the Properties for full payment of such monies.

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA allows ad valorem taxes owed to the
City of Lockhart, Texas on the Property, or its business personal property or
inventory to become delinquent and fails to timely and properly follow the legal
procedures for their protest or contest, PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall be required
© repay LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following such
event. In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to timely repay the
LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees that the LEDC may place a lien
on PROJECT OKLAHOMA assets for full payment of such monies.

Section 6. Certification of Compliance by PROJECT OKLAHOMA

On or before March | of each year that this Agreement is in effect, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA shall upon request certify in writing to the LEDC that it is in compliance

L2



with all provisions of this Agreement. Such certification shall include any and all
documentation required by the LEDC establishing that PROJECT OKL AHOMA has met
the annual employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes reiated to the
Property have been paid in full as required by law. The LEDC, upon reasonable notice
and at any reasonable time, shall have the right to review any and all records of related to
the provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to FTE positions created or
retamned, capital investments made, and use or distribution of and direct incentives
received.

Section 7. Dispute Resolution, Applicable Law, Venue, and Attomevs Fees

(a) In the event of any contreversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement
or the breach of this Agreement, the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve the
same by good faith mediation before a mediator agreed to by the parties. LEDC and
PROJECT OKLAHOMA expressly waive any statutory or other legal requirement that
may exist for serving notices or engaging in alternative dispute resolution prior to doing
s0.

(b) In the event that the claim or controversy is not settled by mediation or any other
alternative dispute resolution method agreed to by the parties, either party may file suit in
a court of competent jurisdiction sitting in the State of Texas. Venue shall lie in Caldwell
County, Texas. The prevailing party in any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall
be entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary costs and attorney’s fees from the non-
prevailing party pursuant to applicable law,

Section &. Entire Agrecement

This Agreement, when executed, contains the entire agreement between the
LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA with respect to the transactions contemplated
herein. This Agreement may be amended, altered, or revoked only by written instrument
signed by the LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA.

Section 9. Successors and Assigns

This Agreement may not be assigned to any third party by PROJECT
OKLAHOMA without the written consent of LEDC, In the event of such assigniment or
in the event of legai succession of PROJECT OKLAHOMA interest in this Agreement by
operation of law, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of such
4S81gN Or SUCCESSOoT.

Section 10, Notices

Any notice and/or statement required and permitied to be delivered shall be
deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following
addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter:

b



PROJECT OKLAHOMA
President/CEQO
PROJECT OKLAHOMA
1400 FM-20 East (Blackjack Road)
Lockhart, TX 78644

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation:
President
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation
308 W. San Antonio
P.O. Box 239
Lockhart, TX 78644

Section 11. Interpretation

Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the
event of dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and
neither more strongly for or against either party.

Section 12, Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or -

unenforceable under present or future laws, then and in that event it is the intention of the
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and it is
also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lien of each clause or provision
that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this
Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to
the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable.

Section 13. Mutual Assistance
LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA agree to do all things reasonably necessary

and appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and
assist each other in carrying out such terms and provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hercto have exccuted this Agreemeni un the
gt dayof fugust , 2018.

THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION:  ATTEST: e
7

”m /ﬁ%‘m/ / -

Vance Rodgers, LEDC President

ey



PROJECT OKLAHOMA:

President/CEQ
State of Texas N
County of Caldwell g
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Le_ day of

ust . 2018, by Vance Rodgers, known to me to be the President of the
Lockhart Economm Development Corporation of Lockhart, Texas.

(ndreq @oﬁc

Notary Public State of Texas

ANDREA DAVILA . e
Notary 1D #131M1536 My Commission expires:
My Commission Expires

Hovember 6. 2021 NDUCM‘D'&( l.ﬂ | 2024

State of Texas §
§
County of §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

. 2018, by John Kinzer, known to me to be the President/CEQ of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA a Texas Limited Liability Corporation, acting on behalf of
such corporation.

Notary Public State of Texas

My Commission expires:













PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Lockhart Economic Development

Corporation held on this _(p th day of A

Afttest:

P :

Roﬁert Tobias, Secretzfj /
/

ST ,2018.

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation

é,;zﬂgé_/

Fermin T. Istas, Chairperson

(It

Vance Rodgers, Président

LEDC Resclution No. 2018-06

(2






Section 2: Term

The term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the 1°* day of the month
following the beginning of business operations by PROJECT OKLAHOMA. When used
hereafter, the phrase “duration of this Agreement” shall mean the term as defined above.

Section 3. LEDC Requirements

In consideration of PROJECT OKLAHOMA agreement to locate its business
within the City and to perform the other acts hereinafter described, LEDC agrees it will:

(a) To provide incentives up to $427,500 for developments and other associated
costs, which will create up to 71 FTE jobs with an average annual wage of
$75,000 per year which are subject to the conditions set out herein and in
Chapter 505 of the Local Government Code (formerly Section 4B, of the
Texas Economie Development Corporation Act of 1979). The amount of
financial benefit that PROJECT OKLAHOMA will retain from the LEDC
project funds is subject to the number of jobs ereated, as described in attached
Potential Value of Incentives Package.

Section 4. PROJECT OKLAHOMA Reguirements

In consideration of LEDC agreeing to perform the foregoing, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA agrees:

(a) To purchase the building at 1400 FM-20 (Blackjack Street) and for other
related improvements valued at $4 million in City of Lockhart;

{(b) To begin operation within 120 days of agreement;

(¢) To employ a minimum of 71 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE™) employees at an
average annual wage of $75,000 for the (10} ten-year period of this
agreement. The term “Full Time Equivalent,” as used in this Agreement,
shall mean employment worked by one or more people during a calendar year
that is equal to a total of at least 2,080 hours;

(d) To keep current in the payment of taxes owed to any taxing jurisdiction in
which the Property is located.

Section 5. Recapture/Termination

(a) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA begins operating its business, but
subsequently discontinues operating its business in such for any reason (a
“Business Interruption™), except as a result of fire, cxplosion, or other casualty or
accident, force majeure or other natural disaster, war or civil unrest, a taking
under eminent domain, regulatory restrictions of any applicable governmental
entity which makes conduct of the PROJECT OKLAHOMA illegal or



economically untenable, or other event beyond the reasonable control of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA: (the “Business [nterruption Exceptions™) for a period
of more than one hundred ecighty (180) days during the duration of this
Agreement, then in such event PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall be required to
repay to LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the
expiration of such period.

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to repay the LEDC within
thirty (30) days of the date such repayment is due, PROJECT OKLAHOMA
hereby agrees that the LEDC may place a lien on the Properties for full
repayment of any monies expended. The burden shall be upon PROJECT
OKLAHOMA to prove to the satisfaction of the LEDC that the discontinuance
of operating its business was a result of one of the Business Intertuption
Exceptions. In the event PROJECT OKLAHOMA meets this burden and the
LEDC is satisfied that the discontinuance of the operation of the manufacturing
facility was the result of events beyond the control of PROJECT OKLLAHOMA,,
the parties shall commemorate such satisfaction in a document signed and dated
by the Parties. PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall then have a period of one (1) year
from the date operations of its business were discontinued in which to resume
business operations.

(c) In the event that following a Business Interruption which may reasonably be cured
within one year of the cessation of business operations, business operations fail to
resume within one (1) year, PROJECT OKLAIIOMA shall be required to repay
LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this Agreement
within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the expiration of the
one year period. In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to timely
repay the LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees that the LEDC may
place a lien on the Properties for full payment of such monjes.

(b) In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA allows ad valorem taxes owed to the
City of Lockhart, Texas on the Property, or its business personal property or
inventory to become delinquent and fails to timely and properly foliow the lcgal
procedures for their protest or contest, PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall be required
to repay LEDC any monies expended by the LEDC under Section 3 of this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following such
event. In the event that PROJECT OKLAHOMA shall fail to timely repay the
LEDC, PROJECT OKLAHOMA hereby agrees that the LEDC may place a lien
on PROJECT OKLAHOMA assets for full payment of such monies.

Section 6. Certification of Compliance by PROJECT OKLAHOMA

On or before March | of each year that this Agreement is in effect, PROJECT
OKLAHOMA shall upon request certify in writing to the LEDC that it is in compliance



with all provisions of this Agreement. Such certification shall include any and all
documentation required by the LEDC establishing that PROJECT OKLAHOMA has met
the annual employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the
Property have been paid in full as required by law. The LEDC, upon reasonable notice
and at any reasonable time, shall have the right to review any and all records of related to
the provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to FTE positions created or
retained, capital investments made, and use or distribution of and direct incentives
received.

Section 7. Dispute Resolution, Applicable Law, Venuc, and Attorneys Fees

(a) In the event of any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement
or the breach of this Agreement, the parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve the
same by good faith mediation before a mediator agreed to by the parties. LEDC and
PROJECT OKLAHOMA expressly waive any statutory or other tegal requirement that
may exist for serving notices or engaging in alternative dispute resolution prior to doing
S0.

(b) In the event that the claim or controversy is not settled by mediation or any other
alternative dispute resolution method agreed to by the parties, either party may file suit in
a court of competent jurisdiction sitting in the State of Texas. Venue shall lie in Caldwell
County, Texas. The prevailing party in any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall
be entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary costs and attorney’s fees from the non-
prevailing party pursuant to applicable law,

Section 8. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, when executed, contains the entire agreement between the
LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA with respect to the transactions contemplated
herein. This Agreement may be amended, altered, or revoked only by written instrument
signed by the LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA.

Section 9. Successors and Assigns

This Agreement may not be assigned to any third party by PROJECT
OKLAHOMA without the written consent of LEDC. In the event of such assignment or
in the event of legal succession of PROJECT OKLAHOMA interest in this Agreement by
operation of law, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of such
assign or SUCCessor.

Section 10. Notices

Any notice and/or statement required and permitted to be delivered shall be
deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following
addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter:



PROJECT OKLLAHOMA:
President/CEO
PROJECT OKLAHOMA
1400 FM-20 East (Blackjack Road)
Lockhart, TX 78644

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation:
President
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation
308 W, San Antonio
P.O. Box 239
Lockhart, TX 78644

Section 11. Interpretation
Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the

event of dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and
neither more strongly for or against either party,

Section 12. Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or -

unenforceable under present or future laws, then and in that event it is the intention of the
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and it is
also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or provision
that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this
Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to
the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable.

Section 13. Mutual Assistance

LEDC and PROJECT OKLAHOMA agree to do all things reasonably necessary
and appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and
assist each other in carrying out such terms and provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the
day of FIch;pfq ,2018.

THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION: ATTEST: o

A /,(%/ y

Vance Rodgers, LEDC President obert Tobias, LEDE"




PROJECT OKLAHOMA:

President/CEQ

State of Texas §
8
County of Caldweil §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this l_,fﬂ’\ day of

, 2018, by Vance Rodgers, known to me to be the President of the
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation of Lockhart, Texas.

(ndneq DoDe

Notary Public State of Texas

AL .. .
1, NN o My Commission expires:
'\K‘ My Commission Expires
Novermber §. 2021 N OV cmb{_{ lg A 2024
State of Texas §
8
County of §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of’

. 2018, by John Kinzer, known to me to be the President/CEO of
PROJECT OKLAHOMA, a Texas Limited Liability Corporation, acting on bchalf of
such corporation.

Notary Public Statc of Texas

My Commission expircs:





































CITY OF LOCKHART

380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM AGREEMENT

This Economic Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into
by and between THE CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS (“City™), a Texas home-rule
municipal corporation, and VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES, a Texas limited
liability company.

RECITALS

VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES desires to expand and locate its new
facility in the City of Lockhart and to participate in the Economic Development Program
established in this Agreement.

VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES intends to make a total investment of
$6.75 million in equipment, personal property, real property, and improvements to real
property over the 10-year period of this Agreement,

City desires to establish the Economic Development Program outlined herein and
offer incentives to VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES to locate its facility in the
City.

City is authorized by §380.001, et seq., Texas Local Government Code, to
promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial
activity within the City. City has determined that a substantial economic benefit and the
creation of new opportunities of employment will accrue to the City and the surrounding
area if its facility is successfully developed on the Property.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants,
agreements, representations, and warranties hereinafter set forth and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged.
City and VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES agree as follows:

AGREEMENTS

Section . Recitals

The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference, as if fully set
forth in their entirety.

Section 2: Term

The term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the 1% day of
next following the date of execution of this Agreement.

Section 3. City Requirements




(a) In consideration of VISIONARY FIBER Technologices® agreement to locate its
expansion facility within the City and to perform the other acts hereinafter described,
City agrees:

To rebate to VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES an amount of money each year equal to
a percentage of the property tax paid for the facilities and improvements by VISIONARY
FIBER TECHNOLOGIES during that year according to Attachment A and the following

schedule:

Year 1 100%
Year 2 75%
Year 3 75%
Year 4 75%
Year 5 75%
Year 6 50%
Year 7 50%
Year 8 50%
Year 9 50%
Year 10 50%

The total City property tax rebate shall not be more than. $236.132 during the ten (10)
year period. Tax rebates on any existing buildings and real property are not allowed.

Section 4. VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES® Requirements

Company herby agrees that it will pay lawful City property taxes on or before January 31
of each year of this ten (10) year agreement and the Company will submit within 90 days
of January 31 a rebate request for applicable City taxes paid and provide sufficient proof
in the form of payroll registers that all job requirements have been satisfied. Failure to
submit the rebate request with all required paperwork within the 90 days will result in no
City rebate for the period of time under consideration.

In consideration of the City agreeing to perform the foregoing. VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES agrees:

(a) To locate an expansion facility within the City that will employ the Full Time
Equivalent (FTE) of thirty employees (30) from the date that VISIONARY
FIBER TECHNOLOGIES opens for business throughout the term of this
agreement and also agrees to have at least 70 (FTE) employees by the 10™
vear of this agreement. The term “Full Time Equivalent,” as used in this
Agreement, shall mean employment worked by one or more people during a
calendar year that is equal to a total of 2080 hours. The average annual wage
of the FTE employees $75.000.

(b) To employ a minimum of seventy (70) FTEs after the time period described
in section 4(a) above, and to continue employing at least that number for the

2



term of this Agreement, provided however that VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES shall be allowed a twenty-five percent (25%) grace factor
in the number of FTE employees employed in any single year, during the term
of this Agreement as a condition of receiving the reimbursement payment
from the City pursuant to Section 3(a) for that year. In the event that the
average FTEs drops below the grace factor number of FTEs in any year,
VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES will forfeit the reimbursement
payment described in Sections 3(a) above for that year without affecting any
other act or incentive agreed to by City.

(c) To keep current in the payment of taxes owed to any taxing jurisdiction in
which the Property is located.

Section 5. Recapture/Termination

(a) In the event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES begins operating at its
facility in the City, but subsequently discontinues operating such facility for any reason,
excepting fire, explosion or other casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event
beyond the reasonable control of VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES for a period of
180 days during the term of this Agreement, then in such event the City will no longer be
obligated to expend any further funds for sales tax reimbursement, and VISIONARY
FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall be required to repay the City for any and all monies
expended by the City under sections 3(a) of this Agreement within 30 days of the
expiration of the 180 days.

(b) In the event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall fail to repay the City
within 30 days of the date such repayment is due, VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES hereby agrees that the City may place a lien on the property where its
expanded facility is located for full payment of such monies. The burden shall be upon
VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES to prove to the satisfaction of the City that the
discontinuance of operating the distribution facility was as a result of fire, explosion, or
other casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event beyond the control of
VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES. In the event VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES meets this burden and the City is satisfied that the discontinuance of
the operation of the its facility was the result of events beyond the control of
VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES, then VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES
shall have a period of one (1) year in which to resume the operation of its facility.

{¢) In the event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES fails to resume its
operations at the facility within one (1) year. then in such event the City will no longer be
obligated to expend any further monies for tax reimbursement, and VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES shall be required to repay the City for any and all monies expended by
the City under sections 3(a) of this Agreement within 30 days of the expiration of the one

3



year period. In the event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall fail to repay
the City within 30 days of the date such repayment is due. VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES hereby agrees that the City may place a lien on the Property for full
payment of such monies.

(d) In the event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES allows ad valorem taxes on
property, or business personal property, or inventory owed to the City to become
delinquent and fails to timely and properly follow the legal procedures for their protest or
contest, then in such event the City will no longer be obligated to expend any further
monies for sales tax reimbursement, and VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall
be required to repay the City for any and all monies expended by the City under sections
3(a) of this Agreement within 30 days of such event. In the event that VISIONARY
FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall fail to repay the City within 30 days of the date such
repayment is due, VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES hereby agrees that the City
may place a lien on the property where the facility is located for full payment of such
IMOonies.

(e) In the event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES relocates the business to a
location outside of the City of Lockhart, then in such event the City will no longer be
obligated to expend any further monies for tax reimbursement, and VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOILOGIES shall be required to repay the City for any and all monies expended by
the City under sections 3(a) of this agreement within 30 days of the relocation. In the
event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall fail to repay the City within 30
days of the date such repayment is due, VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES hereby
agrees that the City may place a lien on the property to which VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES has relocated its facilities for full payment of such monies.

(f) In the event that the City determines that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES is
in default of any of the terms or conditions contained in this Agreement, then in such
event the City shall give VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES thirty (30) days written
notice to cure such default. In the event such default is not cured to the satisfaction of the
City within the thirty (30) days notice period. then in such event the City will no longer
be obligated to expend any further monies for tax reimbursement, and VISIONARY
FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall be required to repay the City for any and all monies
expended by the City under sects 3{a) of this Agreement within 30 days of the default. In
the event that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES shall fail to repay the City within
30 days of the date such repayment is due, VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES
hereby agrees that the City may place a lien on the property where it is located for full
payment of such monies.

Section 6. Certification of Compliance




On or before March 1 of each year that this Agreement is in effect, VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES shall certify in writing to the City its compliance with all provisions
of this Agreement. Such certification shall include any and all documentation required by
the City establishing that VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES has met the annual
employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the Property
have been paid in full as required by law. The City, at any reasonable time, shall have the
right to review any and all records of VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES related to
the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 7. Dispute Resolution, Applicable Law, Venue, and Attorneys Fees

(a) Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach of
this Agreement shall be settled by alternative dispute resolution. City and VISIONARY
FIBER TECHNOLOGIES expressly waive any statutory or other legal requirement that
may exist for serving notices or engaging in alternative dispute resolution prior to doing
$0.

(b) In the event that the claim or controversy is not settled by alternative dispute
resolution, or in the event the parties are unable to agree upon an alternative dispute
resolution agreeable to both parties, this Agreement shall be enforceable by law in a court
of competent jurisdiction according to the laws of the State of Texas. Venue shall lie in
Caldwell County, Texas. The prevailing party in any litigation arising out of this
Agreement shall be entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary costs and attorney’s
fees from the non-prevailing party pursuant to applicable law.

Section 8. Entire Agreement

_ This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the City and VISIONARY
FIBER TECHNOLOGIES with respect to the transactions contemplated herein. This
Agreement may be amended, altered, or revoked only by written instrument signed by the
City and VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES.

Section 9. Successors and Assigns

This Agreement may not be assigned to any third party by VISIONARY FIBER
TECHNOLOGIES without the written consent of the City; no reasonable request that
protects the interests of the City will be denied. In the event of such assignment or in the
event of legal succession of VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES® interest in this
Agreement by operation of law, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the
benefit of such assign or successor.

Section 10. Notices

Any notice and/or statement required and permitted to be delivered shall be
deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return
receipt requested. postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following
addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter:

5

|7



VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES

John Kinzer

President/CEO

VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES
1400 FM-20 East (Blackjack)

Lockhart, TX 78644

City: City Manager, City of Lockhart
308 W. San Antonio
P.O. Box 239
Lockhart, TX 78644

Section 11, Interpretation

Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the
event of dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and
neither more strongly for or against either party.

Section 12. Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable under present or future laws, then and in that event it is the intention of the
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and it is
also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or provision
that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this
Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to
the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable.

Section 13. Mutual Assistance

City and VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES agree to do all things necessary
or appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and
assist each other in carrying out such terms and provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the
day of .2018.




THE CITY OF LOCKHART : ATTEST:

Lew White, Mayor Connie Constancio, City Secretary

VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES:

President/CEO
John Kinzer Title
State of Texas §
§
County of Caldwell §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

. 2018, by Lew White, known to me to be the Mayor of the City of

Lockhart, Texas.

Notary Public

My Comrmission expires:




State of Texas §
§

County of Caldwell  §

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

, 2018, by John Kinzer known to me to be the President/CEQ of
VISIONARY FIBER TECHNOLOGIES.

Notary Public

My Commission expires:










RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13

A RESOLUTION OF THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL AMENDING
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-1t REGARDING APPROVAIL OF THE
PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT SOAR (CROP ONE
HOLDINGS) BY THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2018-11 dated June 5, 2018, the City Council of the City of
Lockhart approved the funding of a project of the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation
("LEDC") called Project Soar (COH); and

WHEREAS, as of the date of the Resolution the LEDC and the Business Entity that will
develop Project Soar (COH) had negotiated Performance Agreement regarding the project, as
required by Sec. 501.158, Texas Local Government Code: and

WHEREAS, certain terms of the Performance Agreement have been amended since the
adoption of the Resolution which include LEDC’s commitment to ensure that utilities, infrastructure,
and a roadway will be made available for the project and that LEDC will assist in securing City
approval of the Project as an Enterprise Zone Project for purposes of the Texas Enterprise Zone
Program; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of the City of Lockhart to acknowledge and
confirm the City’s commitment to perform the obligations of said Performance Agreement, in order
to ensure that the LEDC will meet and comply with the same:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL
THAT:

SECTION 1. The facts and findings described in the preamble of this resolution are
incorporated herein as if fully set out.

SECTION 2. The commitments and obligations of the LEDC contained in the
Performance Agreement for Project Soar (COH), including the City of Lockhart 2015
Certificates of Obligation funding for water infrastructure construction commitments adjacent to
the property. and the LEDC funding and acquisition commitments for the purchase of the
Option Parcel by the LEDC as provided therein are hereby approved and confirmed by the
City Council of the City of Lockhart.

SECTION 3. Except as herein amendment the terms of Resolution No. 2018-11
shall remain in full force and effect.
CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Connie Constancio, City Secretary Peter Gruning. City Attorney




DRAFT

L budget.

h
=

Ly
I
.
e
()
=t
-

N

=
I

Modion io approve ithe Fiscal Ye

Motion: Morris Afexancier Second. Alfredo Munoz Fote, 6 of 6 10 upprove

3. PUBLIC HEARING
A. Hold a public hearing regarding Project Oklahoma and proposed incentive to establish its
business in Lockhart with an estimated initial investment of $6.75 million and creating and

maintaining up to 70 new full time equivalent jobs with an average annual wage of over $75,000
within five (5) years.

Open Public Hearing ac: 6.13 P.M,

Is there anyone here that would like to speak in favor of the project”? There was none.
Is there anvone here that would like to speck in apposition 1o the profject? There was none,
Close Public Hearing ar:_6:14 PAM.

4. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
A. Discussion and/or action to consider the approval of LEDC Resolution 2018-06 related to
Project Oklahoma and associated Performance Agreement for funding up to $427,500 for
workforce incentives, infrastructure improvements, and related development costs, that are
required or suitable for the development, retention or expansion of facilities to promote or
develop new or expanded business enterprises, and to create and maintain new jobs.

Motion o approve LEDC Resolution 20{8-06

Motion: Morris Alexancer Second: difredo Munoz Fote, 6 of 6 1o approve

B. Discussion and/or action to consider the approval of revised Performance Agreement with
Project Soar as recommended by LEDC legal counsel.

Motion 1o approve the revised Pertormance A greemeni wirh Projeci Sogr

Morion: Nic lrwin ) _ Secoird: Alfredo Munoz Yore: 6 0F 6 o approve

C. Discussion and/or action regarding the potential sale of Lot 4B, 1.806 acre tract in the Lockhart
Industrial Park IT

Mr. Rodgers stated that an existing company is seeking io expand and has inquired as to their
interest in purchasing Lot 4B. The price offered of $75,241 was comparable and consistent with
recent sales of industrial tracts in the area and higher than all offers previously submitted. The
company is working to respond to new business development opportunities and is seeking a
prompt response.

LOCKHARYT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LEDCY
MINUTES
‘Monday, August 6, 2018 - 6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL - UPSTAIRS
308 WEST SAN ANTONIO STREET
Page 2 of 4



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT

This Economic Development Performance Agreement (“Agreement”) is made
and entered into by and between THE LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION OF LOCKHART, TEXAS (“LEDC™), a Type B Economic

Development Corporation, and Crop One Holdings, Inc. (“CROP ONE™), a Texas
Limited Liability corporation,

RECITALS

WHEREAS, CROP ONE desires to expand its operations to the City of Lockhart,
Texas (“City™), to acquire a 5.43 acre tract within the City, to construct a facility in the
City, of at least 70,000 square feet with other improvements, including equipment (“the

Facility”), and participate in the Economic Development Program established in this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, LEDC desires to establish the Economic Development Program
outlined herein and to offer incentives to CROP ONE under such Economic Development
Program to locate such business in the City; and

WHEREAS, LEDC is authorized to promote state and local economic
development and to stimulate business and commercial activity within the City, and
LEDC has determined that substantial economic benefits, including an increase in the
City’s tax rolls, an increase in sales tax revenues, and the creation of new opportunities
for local employment, will accrue to the City and the surrounding area, if such business is
successtully developed on such property; and

WHEREAS, LEDC and CROP ONE desire to enter into this Agreement in order
to comply with Sec. 501.158, Texas Local Govemment Code, which requires an
economic development corporation, in order to offer incentives or make expenditures on
behalf of a business enterprise under a project, to enter into a performance agreement that
addresses a schedule of jobs created or retained, capital investment to be made, direct
mcentives provided, and the terms under which repayment shall be made in the event a
business enterprise does not meet the requirements specified in the Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants,
agiseimncnis, representations, and warranties hereinafier set forth and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
LEDC and CROP ONE agree as follows:



ACREEMENTS

Section 1. Recitals

The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set
forth in their entirety.

Section 2: Term
The term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the 1% day of the month

following the beginning of business operations by CROP ONE ai the Facility. When

used hereafter, the phrase “duration of this Agreement” shall mean the term as defined
above.

Section 3. LEDC Requirements

In consideration of CROP ONE’s agreement to locate its business within the City
and to perform the other acts hereinafter described, LEDC agrees it will;

(a) Provide a Grant equal to $491,049 to CROP ONE in two parts as described
below.

(b) Provide 50% of the $491,049 Grant to CROP ONE after CROP ONE
purchases 5.43 acres of land in the City, constructs the Facility, as provided
below, and receives a Certificate of Occupancy from the City.

(c) Provide the remaining 50% of the $491,049 Grant to CROP ONE after CROP
ONE provides proof of the creation of up to fifty (50) FTE jobs with an average
annual wage of $35,000 per year as provided in Item 4(e) below and which are
subject to the requirements of Chapter 505 of the Local Government Code

(formerly Section 4B, of the Texas Economic Development Corporation Act of
1979).

The amount of financial benefit that CROP ONE will retain from LEDC
project funds is subject to the number of Jobs created, as described in 4(e) below.

—
[
S

Cause the LEDC to acquire a 7.64 acre tract of land coniiguous to the 542
acre iract of land (“Option Parcel”) and to grant an exclusive option to purchase
the Optivn Parcel to LEDC for the soie benefit of CROF ONE ("Option”). The
Option shall be for a time period of five (5) years from the date of closing of the
purchase of the 5.43 acre tract of land referenced herein, at a purchase price equal
to the current purchase price per acre, as prorated, for the 5.43 acre tract of land.
CROP ONE shall pay the LEDC, at the time of closing on the 5.43 acre tract, an
option fee equal to five percent (5%) of the purchase price of the 7.64 acre tract.

(S



{e) Ensure that all utilities and infrastructure needed to operate the Facility,
including, without limitation, waler, electricity, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and
detention ponds, if required, natural gas, and telecommunications are available to
the Facility by March 1, 2019. If CROP ONE exercises the Option and purchases
the Option Parcel, LEDC shall further ensure that any and all additional utilities
and infrastructure needed to operate the improvements to be constructed on the
Option Parcel shall be available thereto based on the milestone dates to be agreed
upon by LEDC and CROP ONE.

() Ensure that a dedicated roadway that provides truck and automobile access

from state route 130 to and from the Facility, along with lighting and sidewalks is
constructed by March 1, 2019,

(g) Assist in obtaining approval by the City of Lockhart of the Project as an
Enterprise Zone Program for purposes of CROP ONE applying for Texas
Enterprise Zone Program benefits.

(h) Provide, as a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this Agreement,
copies of authorizing resolution(s) confirming approval of the City Council of the
City of Lockhart of this Project and the funding and infrastructure construction
commitments of the City in support of this Agreement and the funding and

acquisition commitments for the purchase of the Option Parcel by the LEDC as
provided herein.

(1) Provide to CROP ONE, as a further condition precedent to the effectiveness
of this Agreement, a copy of the fully executed purchase agreement between the
LEDC and the current owner of the Option Parcel, under which the LEDC shall
acquire the Option Parcel as provided above.

() To the extent reasonably feasible, assist in causing the replatting of the 5.43
acre iract as a separate tax parcel, in compliance with applicable law.

(k) To the extent rcasonably feasible, assist in causing the issuance of all
necessary permits, licenses and consents by the City of Lockhart for consiruction
and operation of the Facility to be expedited.

In turtherance of Sections 3(e) and (£), LEDC shall provide CROP ONE, within
thirty (30) days from the date hereof, with a list of milestone dates for each designated
phase of the work provided therein, which shall be complementary to CROP ONE’s
coistruciion schedule in the comnpletion of each phase of the Facility. The purpose of
such list of milestone dates is in order that the LEDC and CROP ONE shall coordinate
their respective construction activities with the other in order to facilitate completion of
their respective responsibilities and obligations in a timely and legally compliant manner.
Such milestone dates shall be amended, as needed, in order to stay current but failure of
either party to meet a milestone date shall not be a breach of this Agreement. For the
purpose of this Section 3, a sketch of the 5.43 acre tract of land and the Option Parcel,

LS

\Y!



and of the roadway connection to these premises, is attached hereto as Schedule 3 and
made a part hereof.

LEDC represents and warrants to CROP ONE that it has available funding to
finance all of the work provided in Sections 3(e) and ().

Section 4. CROP ONE Requirements

In consideration of LEDC agreeing to perform the foregoing, and subject to any

force majeure or Business Interruption Exception, as hereinafter defined, CROP ONE
agrees:

(a) Subject to compliance by the seller of the operative purchase agreements, and

the satisfaction of all conditions precedent to the closing thereunder, purchase the
5.43 acres referenced in this Agreement;

(b) Construct the Facility in the City of at least 70,000 square feet and with other
improvements, including equipment, with a current project budget of
approximately $10,000,000.00 in capital investment, provided that CROP ONE
shall be entitled to revise the budget as a result of, among other things, savings
tealized by value engineering, reduction of costs in building materials, equipment,

labor and other components of the Facility, and substitution of individual facility
components;

(c) Submit schematic drawings for the Facility to the City within one hundred
twenty (120) days of execution of this agreement and thercafter commence
construction of the Facility within one hundred twently (120) days after the later of
(i) the City’s approval of the construction plans and issuance of a building permit
for the Facility and (ii) CROP ONE’s purchase of the 5.43 acre tract;

(d) Complete construction of the Facility within eighteen (18) months after the
occurrence of the later of item 4(c) (1) or (ii) above;

(e) Employ a minimum of fifty (50) Full Time Equivaient (“FTE"”) emplovees
having an average annual wage of at least $35,000 within the first five (5) years

from the commenceinent of the term of this Agreement according to the following
schedule:

End of year one: Twenty (20) employees
End of year two:  Thirty (30) emplovees
End of year three: Thirty-five (35) employees
End of year four:  Forty (40) employees

End of year five:  Fifty (50) emplovees

For the purposes of the payment of the amount of the grant contained in [tem
3(c) above, LEDC shali pay the same to CROP ONE within thirty (33) days of



receipt of satisfactory proof of erployment of fifty (50) FTE employees
regardless of the year during said five vears in which that total is reached;

CROP ONE shall provide LEDC with proof of employment of employees by
submitting copies of payroll records omitting individual names, and federal
employment tax forms providing for only the last four digits of employee social
security numbers, or other documentation reasonably satisfactory to LEDC, which

shall be provided within thirty ( 30) days of the end of each year of the term of this
Agreement;

Retain at least that number of FTE employees for another five (5) years after
fulfilling the creation of said fifty (50) jobs. The term “Full Time Equivalent,” as
used in this Agreement, shail mean employment worked by one or more people
during a calendar year that is equal to a total of at least 1,820 hours including

hours associated with holidays, vacation, sick and personal time, and overtime:
and

(f) Keep current in the payment of taxes owed for the Facility to any taxing
jurisdiction in which the 5.43 acre tract is located, unless such taxes are being
legally contested by CROP ONE.

Section 5. Termination and Recapture

(a) Subject to the curative rights available to CROP ONE under this Agreement, in
the event that CROP ONE begins operating its business at the Facility but
subsequently discontinues such operations for a period of more than one hundred
eighty (180) days during the duration of this Agreement, then in such event CROP
ONE shall be required to repay to LEDC any monies expended by LEDC under
Section 3 of this Agreement within thirty (30) days of written demand from
LEDC therefore following the expiration of such period; provided however that
CROP ONE shall not be required to repay such monies if such discontinuation of
operations is caused by force majeure or is due to a “Business Interruption
Exception.” For the purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure” shall be defined
as fire, explosion, natural disaster or other act of God, war, or civil unrest, and
“Business Interruption Exception™ shall be defined as a taking under eminent
domain, regulatory restrictions or action of any applicable governmental entity, or
other event or action thai makes the conduct of the CROP ONE illegal or
economically unsustainable, is beyond the reasonable control of CROP ONE and
LEDC agrees in the exercise of its reasonable judgment that continued or renewed
operations are economically unsustainable or the failure of LEDC 1o perform any
of its obligations coniained in Section 3 hereof. [ urthermore, CRCP ONE shall
not e required to repay such amounts so long as it is diligently taking action(s) to
reneéw or continue operations at the Facility and such action(s) are considered
diligent by the LEDC in the exercise of its reasonable judgment.

(b) Subject to the curative rights available to CROP ONE under this Agreement, in
the event, that CROP ONE shall fai] to repay LEDC within thirty (30) days of the

h



(c)

date such repayment is due according to the written demand from LEDC, CROP
ONE hereby agrees that LEDC may enforce all of its rights and remedies
available at law and in equity against CROP ONE. The burden shall be upon
CROF ONE to prove to the satisfaction of LEDC that the discontinuance of
operating its business or diligent actions to renew or continue operations was
allowed under Item 5(a) above. In the event CROP ONE meets this burden and
LEDC, in its reasonable judgment, is satisfied that the discontinuance of the
operation of the manufacturing facility was allowed under Item 5(a), the parties
shall commemorate such satisfaction in a document signed and dated by the
Parties. CROP ONE shall then have a period of one (1) year from the date

operations of its business were discontinued in which to resume business
operations.

Subject to the curative rights available to CROP ONE under this Agreement, in
the event, that following a Business Interruption Exception which may reasonably
be cured within one year of the cessation of business operations, business
operations fail to resume within one (1) year, CROP ONE shall be required to
repay LEDC any monies expended by LEDC under Section 3 of this Agreement
within thirty (30) days of written demand therefore following the expiration of the
one year period. In the event, that CROP ONE shall fail to timely repay LEDC,
CROP ONE hereby agrees that LEDC may enforce all of its rights and remedies
available at law and in equity against CROP ONE.

(d) In the event, that CROP ONE allows ad valorem taxes owed to the City on the

Property, or its business personal property or inventory to become delinquent and
fails to pay such sums after receipt of sixty (60) or more days notice of such
delinquency from LEDC, CROP ONE shall be required to repay LEDC any
monies expended by LEDC under Scction 3 of this Agreement within thirty (30)
days of written demand therefore following such event, except that CROP ONE
shall not be required to pay any monies to LEDC or otherwise be considered in
default of this Agreement if it challenges any such taxes or assessments by the
institution of appropriate legal proceedings, including, without limitation,
administrative proceedings. In the event, that CROP ONE shall fail to timely
repay LEDC, CROP ONE hereby agrees that LEDC may enforce all of its rights
and remedies available at iaw and in equity against CROP ONE.

In the event that CROP ONE fails 1o employ a minimum of fifty (50) Full Time
Equivalent (“FTE™) employees having an average annual wage of at least
$35,000 within the first five (3) years from the commencement of the term of this
Agreement according to the schedule provided in {tem 4(e) above, or faiis ic
retain at least that number of FTE employees for another five (5) years after
fulfiiling the creation of said fifty (50) jobs, CROP ONE shall reimburse LEDC
the sum of $9,821.00 for each job that is less than the total required in a year or
for which the average annual wage paid is less than $35,000.00. TEDC and
CROP ONE acknowledge that employee turnover and local labor shortages may
cause CROP ONE to fail to meet or retain the minimum number of jobs during

=
one or more years of the term of this Agreement, and CROP ONE shall not be

4



required to reimburse LEDC said amouni for a job that is or becomes vacant and
which CROP ONE is unable to il for a period of three (3) months or mors
despite its reasonable and documented efforis to do so.

Section 6. Certification of Compliance by CROP ONE

On or before March 1 of each year that this Agreement is in effect, CROP ONE
shall, upon written request from LEDC and in addition to any other reports to LEDC
required in this Agreement, certify in writing to LEDC that it is in compliance with all
provisions of this Agreement. Such certification shall include any and all documentation
reasonably required by LEDC establishing that CROP ONE has met the annual
employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the Property
have been paid in full as required by law, subject to the limitations set forth above.
LEDC, upon reasonable notice and at any reasonable time, shall have the right to review
any and all records directly pertaining to the FTE positions created or retained payment

of taxes due the City of Lockhart, and use or distribution of and direct incentives
received.

LEDC for itself, employees and contractors, shall keep strictly confidential any
and all information about employees or other individuals employed at the Facility as a
result of information provided to, or inspected by, LEDC in connection with the
administration of this Agreement under Section 6 hereof or otherwise, subject to action
otherwise required by state law or a court of competent jurisdiction and last resort in the
case of an appeal. It is expressly understood that all such information obtained by LEDC
is for the limited purpose of verification of CROP ONE’s compliance under this
Agreement. LEDC shall ensure the confidentiality of such information and shall take all
measures necessary to protect the same against disclosure. Furthermore, LEDC shall

comply with all reasonable instructions of CROP ONE to maintain the confidentiality of
such information.

LEDC for itself, employees and contractors, shall further keep strictly confidential
all information obtained by, or furnished to, LEDC in connection with the Facility and
the business affairs of CROP ONE that are designated in writing as confidential or
proprietary by CROP ONE. Notwithstanding anything contained hersin to the contrary,
CROP ONE shali not be required to furnish to LEDC or to any other applicable
governmental body information which CROP ONE, in its reasonable judgment, considers
& trade secret or proprietary, including, without limitation, software, equipment,
production processes, customer lists, intellectual property, or other information
considered proprietary and confidential by separate agreements with third parties. In the
event that LEDC receives a request for information or records in the possession of LEDC
about the Facility or CROP ONE’s business affairs under the Texas Public Information
Act, LEDC shali timely both request a ruling from the Texas Attorney General that such
information or records may be withheld from disclosure and shall promptly fumish
written notice of such request to CROP ONE in order that CROP ONE shall have the
opportunity to brief the Attorney General regarding such information or records or to
otherwise challenge such request prior to disclosure.

Y49



Section 7. Dispute Resolution. Applicable Law. Venue, and Attornevs Fees

(@) In the event of any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or the breach of this Agreement, the parties shall attempt in good faith
to resolve the same by good faith mediation before a mediator agreed to by the
parties. LEDC and CROP ONE expressly waive any statutory or other legal

requirement that may exist for serving notices or engaging in alternative dispute
resolution prior to doing so.

(b) In the event that the claim or controversy is not settled by mediation or any other
alternative dispute resolution method agreed to by the parties, either party may
file suit in a court of competent jurisdiction sitting in the State of Texas. Venue
shall lie in Caldwell County, Texas. The prevailing party in any litigation arising
out of this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary
costs and attorney’s fees from the non-prevailing party pursuant to applicable law.

(¢} In the event that CROP ONE fails to perform any monetary obligation contained
herein within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice specifying the
particulars of the default, or fails to perform any non-monetary obligation
contained herein within a reasonable time period after receipt of written notice
specifying the particulars of such default so long as CROP ONE commences and
diligently prosecutes the curing of such default within the reasonable time period,
then CROP ONE shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement and LEDC
shall be entitled to enforce all rights and remedies at law or in equity against
CROP ONE. The curative rights stated in the immediately preceding sentence
shall complement all other curative rights expressly stated in this Agreement.

Section 8. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, when executed, contains the entire agreement between LEDC
and CROP ONE with respect to the transactions contemplated herein. This Agreement

may be amended, altered, or revoked only by written instrument signed by LEDC and
CROP ONE.

Section 9. Successors and Assiens

Neither pariy shall assign irs rights, obligations, or interest in this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed, except that CROP ONE shall be entitled to assign its rights and
inierest contained in this Agreement without such written conseni of the LEDC provided
that such assignment does not release CROP ONE from liability under this Agreement
and such assignment will not prejudice the interests of LEDC and is to an affiliate, parent
or subsidiary of CROP ONE, a partv to whom such assignment is required in order to
secure funding or financing of the Facility and project, or such transfer is a sale of the
business or project and both will continue in the ordinary course of business. In the eveni
of such assignment or in the event of legal succession of CROP ONE interest in this

b



Agreement by operation of law, this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the
benefit of such assign or successor.

Section 10. Notices

Any notice and/or statement required and permitted to be delivered shali be
deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with retumn
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following
addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter:

CRGP ONE:
Chief Financial Officer
2076 Zanker Road
San Jose, CA 95131

Lockhart Economic Development Corporation:
President
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation
308 W. San Antonio
P.O. Box 239
Lockhart, TX 78644

Section 11. Interpretation

Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the
event of dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and
neither more strongly for or against either party.

Section 12, Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable under present or future laws, then and in that event it is the intention of the
partics hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and it is
also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or provision
that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to this
Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possibie to
the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceabie.

section 13. Mutual Assistance

LEDC and CROP ONE agiee to do all things reasonably necessary and
appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and assist
each other in carrying out such terms and provisions.

Section 4. Representations and Warranties of LED(C.

LEDC hereby repiesents warrants and covenants that:



(@) It is a Tvpe B Fconomic Development Corporation, duly organized and validiy
existing under the iaws of the Staze, particularly Seciions 301 and 505 of the
Texas Local Government Code.

(b) The Facility constitutes a “project” as defined in Sections 501.101 and 505.155 of
the Texas Local Government Code.

(¢) All requirements related to public notice of the project, particularly those included
in Section 505.160 of the Texas Local Govermnment Code, have been satisfied.

|

- IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on
the [pyTh day ofj:}'lt 5/, st , 2018,

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION:

)
P

M s
Vance Rodgers, LEDC President

ATTEST:

EAR: 7.
- o A I
AN Ny

Ro-bert Tobias, LEDC Secretary

~

CROP ONE HOLDINGS, INC,:

Dave Vosburg, Chief Financial Officar



State of Texas §
§
County of Caldwell  §
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this = day of

R , 2018, by Vance Rodgers, known to me to be the President of the
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation of Lockhart, Texas on behalf of that
corporation.

1.

Nofaiy Public State of Texas

ANDREA DAVILA .. .
Notary 1D #131341939 My Commission expires:

My Commission Expirea
Navember B, 2021 . : L |

A e

State of Texas §
§
County of §

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _day of
» 2018, by Dave Vosburg, known to me to be the Chicf Financial Officer
of CROP ONE HOLDINGS, INC., a Texas Limited Liability Corporation, acting on
behalf of such corporation.

MNotary Public State of Texas

My Comtnission expires:




POTENTIAL VALUE OF INCENTIVES PACKAGE
PROSPECT: PROJECT SOAR
APPROVLED BY LEDC ON May 21, 2018

Incentives to locate $15 miltion project to Lockhart with 50 FTE jobs with an average annual wage of $35,000; total payroll of $1.75 million

LEDC INCENTIVES PROPOSED: INCENTIVE AMOUNTS UP TO:
* Reimburse company for purchase ot 5 acres of fand adjacent to SH
130 frontage north bound just north of railroad line including surveying,
subdividing, and legal fees $392,040
** Reimburse impact, building/inspection fees, water/sewer taps $59,009
Transformers {with proof of cosr to company) 540,000

LEDC INCENTIVES PROPOSED UP TO: $491,049

* LEDC will reimburse company 50% of $491,049 upon proof of $10
million facitity investment and issuance of a Certifcate of Occupancy;
reimbursement is % ratio based on investment

**Remainder of $491,029 to be reimbursed upon proof of new jobs
creation; reimbursement is % ratio base on job creation
All above potential incentives approved by LEDC on 5-21-2018 but

subject to final approval by City Council

.

8/6/2018C:\Users\rtabias\Documents\Project Soar\071018 LEDC !ncentives for Res 2018-05 Project Soar Approved.xisx



|S]

N $H130 np

Concept Draft

0 200 400
SR Feet

Legend

RailRoad

—--~-= Utility Easements
P

L I Access Easement

D Property Boundary

LOT
2

13.682 Acres










conditions as set out in Exhibit A Economic Development Performance Agreement attached hereto
and in Chapters 501, 504, and 505 of the Texas Economic Development Corporation Act of 1979,

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Lockhart City Council held on this
day of . 2018.

City of Lockhart

Lew White, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Connie Constancio, TRMC Peter Gruning, City Attorney
City Secretary

Resolution No. 2018-14





















41

alLL

Net Debt Service
Guadalupe Blanco River Authaority
City of Lockhart Portion 20%
GBRA-AWRA Project No Water Swap 80% Board Participation and 20% Low Interest
Assumes 2017 SWIRFT Rates Plus 0.00%
Capitalized interest Through 8/15/2022 For Low Interest Loans

Period Total Debt tnterest Debt Service  Capitalized Net Debt

Ending Principal Interest Service Deferral Coverage Reserve Fund Interest Fund Service
8/15/2021 S 909,302 § 903,302 S {776,771) $ 132,531
8/15/2022 1,152,636 1,152,636 (984,639) 167,997
8/15/2023 § 175,000 1,152,636 1,327,636 {984,639) 3 132,764 H 475,76
8/15/2024 176,000 1,151,148 1,327,148 {787,711} 132,715 672,152
8/15/2025 178,000 1,149,459 1,327,459 (787,711) 132,746 672,434
8/15/2026 180,000 1,147,501 1,327,501 (683,247) 132,750 771,004
8/15/2027 182,000 1,145,287 1,327,287 {590,783) 132,729 B59,232
8/15/2028 184,000 1,142,848 1,326,848 {443,087) 132,685 1,016,345
8/15/2029 187,000 1,140,125 1,322,125 {295,392) 132,712 1,164,446
8/15/2030 130,000 1,137,170 1,322,170 (147,656) 132,717 1,312,191
B/15/2051 193,000 1,133,978 1,326,278 132,698 1,459,676
£/15/2032 197,000 1,130,408 1,327,408 132,741 1,460,143
2/15/2033 201,000 1,126,350 1,327,350 132,735 1,460,084
8/15/2034 205,000 1,121,827 1,326,827 926,811 132,683 2,386,320
8/15/2035 210,000 1,116,846 1,326,646 926,811 132,685 2,386,341
8/15/2036 216,000 1,111,533 1,327,533 926,811 132,753 2,387,096
8/15/2037 221,600 1,105,895 1,326,895 926,811 132,589 2,386,395
8/15/2038 227,000 1,699,972 1,326,372 926,311 132,697 2,386,480
8/15/2039 234,000 1,093,775 1,322,715 926,811 132,778 2,387,363
8/15/2040 240,000 1,087,293 1,327,293 926,811 132,729 2,386,833
8/15/2041 1,571,000 1,080,548 2,651,549 265,155 2,916,704
£/15/2042 1,625,000 1,026,113 2,651,218 265,122 2,916,340
B/15/2043 1,683,000 967,485 2,650,485 265,049 2,915,534
8/15/2044 1,744,000 806,304 2,650,304 265,030 2,915,335
8/15/ 2045 1,808,000 842,895 2,650,495 265,089 2,315,984
8/15/2046 1,874,000 776,992 2,650,992 265,099 2,916,091
8/15/2047 1,943,000 705,857 2,549,857 264,986 2,914,843
8/15/2048 2,017,000 634,121 2,651,121 265,112 2,916,233
8/15/2049 2,052,000 558,777 2,650,777 265,078 2,915,855
8/15/2050 2,170,000 445,823 2,650,823 265,082 2,915,906
8/15/2051 2,251,00a 399,950 2,650,850 265,095 $ 332,478 2,583,567
8/15/2052 1,991,000 317,585 2,308,585 230,858 2,539,443
8/15/2053 2,066,000 242,524 2,308,524 230,852 2,538,377
8/15/2054 2,143,000 164,636 2,307,636 230,764 2,538,359
8/15/2055 2,224,000 83,845 2,307,845 230,784 1,555,294 983,336

$ 32792000 3 31,545549 3 64,343,549 3 0 5 6228161 § L1887,77t $ 300528 5 68,383,410

Dec 19, 2017 12:04 pm Prepared by HilltopSecurities {raf} (Finance 8.000 GBRA:GBRAL0) Page 1



7\

Guadalupe Blanco River Authority
Projected Debt Service for the City of Lockhart SWIRFT

Projected Series 2018
SWIRFT August 1, 2018 Rates
Period Ending Net Debt Service !

8/15/2019
8/15/2020
8/15/2021 5 32,370
€/15/2022 64,740
8/15/2023 175,525
8/15/2024 416,201
8/15/2025 452,915
8/15/2026 498,454
8/15/2027 549,341
8/15/2028 599,981
8/15/2029 626,078
8/15/2030 621,937
8/15/2031 762,917
8/15/2032 903,533
8/15/2033 903,893
8/15/2034 903,893
8/15/2035 903,585
8/15/2036 902,932
8/15/2037 901,991
8/15/2038 766,332
8/15/2039 1,015,197
8/15/2040 1,008,731
8/15/2041 1,006,979
8/15/2042 1,009,661
8/15/2043 1,011,094
8/15/2044 1,011,261
B/15/2045 1,010,096
8/15/2046 1,013,133
8/15/2047 1,009,195
8/15/2048 1,009,457
8/15/2049 711,231
8/15/2050 714,303
8/15/2051 710,651
8/15/2052 711,503
8/15/2053 711,121
8/15/2054
B/15/2055
8/15/2056

$ 24,650,229

{1) Net Debt Service includes the 1.10 times debt service coverage.

Aug 7, 2018 1(:01 am Prepared by HilltopSecurities (raf)

b/
Eirs 1 LSsppq






nevent” LJW‘VM D@b'{/’

Water Fund 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2004 2035 DEBT

2006ATax & RevCO's  700% 20164 20157 20122 l[ 80,850
2009 GO Refunding 8669% / 106239

2015 Tax & Revenus 43 60% 486.616 486,322 486,817 487,413 644,248 644 496 642,909 643207 643,331 644,223 644,670 664,510 863,468 663,778 662 842 £63,822 663.406 @ 11.101,180

2016 GO Retunding 21.81% 49.849 101,103 105247 102,919 181,435 194 357 192,833 194,371 196,159 185,418 197,686 / - - - - - - - 1721377

2013 518 Loan 35.80% 82675 82676 82,676 82676 82676 82676 82.676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82676 82 676 82676 82676 82,676 @ 1322818

922,166 §22.317 925,032 747,186 746,144 745,454 745518 746,498 663,406 664,300 14,332,462

[Totat Water Fund P & | 745745 £€30,258 694,862 693,416 918,359 921,529 918418 520,254

h|
=
-
N
SN













































SECTION 3.

MATERIAL.

NOTIFICATION BY GBRA OF OCCURRENCE OF CERTAIN EVENTS, IF

GBRA shall notify the MSRB through EMMA in an electronic format as prescribed by the
MSRB, in a timely manner (but not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event)

of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if such event is material within the meaning
of the federal securities laws:

SECTION 4.

Non-payment related defaults;
Modifications to rights of Bondholders;

Bond calls;

Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds:

The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an
obligated person or the sale of all or substantiaily all of the assets of the
obligated person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into
a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a
definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its
terms; and

Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee.

NOTIFICATION BY GBRA OF OCCURRENCE OF CERTAIN EVENTS,

WHETHER OR NOT MATERIAL.

GBRA shall notify the MSRB through EMMA in an electronic format as prescribed by the
MSRB, in a timely manner (but not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event)
of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, without regard to whether such event is
considered materiaf within the meaning of the federal securities laws:

1.

2.

Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

\1

i









order, indenture, decree, agreement or instrument by which such party is bound, and (iv) such party,
except as disclosed in the Official Statement relating to the Bonds, is not aware of any litigation or
proceeding pending, or, to the best of such party's knowledge, threatened, contesting or questioning
its existence, or its power and authority to enter into this Agreement, or its due authorization,

execution and delivery of this Agreement, or otherwise contesting or questioning the issuance of
Bonds.

B. Governing Law.,

This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State
of Texas and applicable federal law.

C. Severability.

If any provision hereof shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
Jurisdiction, the remaining provisions hereof shall survive and continue in full force and effect.

D. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each and all of which shall
constitute one and the same instrument,

[The remainder of this page intentionally lefi blank]

47



IN WITNESS WHEREOF. GBRA and the Disclosure Party have each caused their duly
authorized officers to execute this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

GUADALUPE-BLANCO RIVER AUTHORITY

Chair, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Directors

CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

By:
Title: Mayor

ATTEST:

City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By:

City Attorney

Signature Page to Continuing Disclosure Agreement Relating to
Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority Contract Revenue Bonds
{Carrizo Groundwater Supply Project)







































LIST OF BOARD/COMMISSION VACANCIES

Updated: August 10, 2014

Board Name ~_Reappointments/Vacancies Council member

W

Board ofTde ustment Nic Irwin moved to Lockhart Economic Developme_f{t Corp. 7 Any Councilmember

APPLICATIONS RECEIVED TQ BE ON A BOARD/COMMISSION

APPLICANT BOARD REQUESTED DATE RECEIVED RESIDENCE
- _ o - DISTRICT
Rick Arnic Lockhart Economic Development Corp.
And 07/03/2018 District 3
- B Ptanning & Zoning Commission










[j L]‘

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

| Committee to have 8-10 members as follows:

NOTES:
PARKS

: MASTER PLAN

STEERING
COMMITTEE
(bst, 09/05/2017)

| NOTES:

AD-HOC
COMMITTEE -
ST, PALIL
UNITED
CHURCH OF
CHRIST
PROPERTY
(kist. 09/05/2017)

WAYFINDING
SIGNAGE AND
COMMUNITY
BRANDING
AD-HOC

PAGE 3 Updated 08/10/2018

« Counciimembers

s+ City staff

» Two Parks Advisory Beard members
* Business owners

* Civic Organization members

Committee will assist Burditt Consultants to perform tasks outlined in the Parks Master Plan.

Committee will consist of at least one appointment from Mayor and each Councilmember.

The Committee will make recommendations to the Council about the use of the property at 728 5. Main.

Committee will assist City Planner/Development Services with wayfind:ng signage and community branding tasks.

Committee will consist of up to five members appointed by the Council.

(Est O1/02/2018)













COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 7 Updated 08/10/2018

Church  Property  Ad-hoc | Amelia Smith | 09/05/17 — Westmoreland

Committee (7 members)

Jackie Westmoreland
Todd Blomerth

09/05/17  Westmoreland
09/05/17 -- Mayor White

sl

Vanessa Fischer
Kate Collins
Katie Westmoreland Mills

Andy Govea 09/1917 - Sanchez
Terry Black 12/16/17 -- McGregor
Jane Brown 09/19/17 - Michelson
Raymond Del.eon 09/20/17  Castillo
Dyral Thomas 09/22/17 - Mendoza
Waylinding Signage and | Kara McGregor 01/02/2018
Community Branding Ad-Hoc | Roy Watson 01/02/2018
Committee (5 members) Chris St. Leger 01/02/2018
| Taylor Burge 02/06/2018
Christie Pruitt—Lockhart Chamber | 02/08/2018
Laura Rivera-Hispanic Chamber 02/09/2018

02/09/2018 (ex-officio)
02/06/2018 (ex-officio)
02/06/2018 (ex-ofticio)










LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL |PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
with GF Expiring debt saving
BH 3 Continue Improving City Cemetery and/or Cemetery Tax CEMETERY
Jeff M 2 |Refurbish City Hall in the inside (to make more inviting to the public) as well as doing some CITY BLDGS
landscaping outside
BW 3 |Spruce up and clean up City properies CITY BLDGS
BH 4 (Improve City Facilities Appearance General Fund CITY BLDGS
JC 4 |City Facilities CITY BLDGS
AGS 10 |[Convention Center CONVENTION CTR
JC 2 Crime CRIME
AGS 4 Police Task Force: Budget extra funds for a Police Task Force, a Narcotics Officer and a Mental CRIME
Health Officer to address any drug and gang related problems and mental issues our city is
being faced not only on the East side of our city but citywide. Budget for updated training for
our police officers. There is alot of training that is free but alot additonal money for
registration fees and course material.
Jeff M 4 |Work with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program CRIME
LW 8 [Fund for helping utility customers in need ?7?? CUSTOMER SERV
BW 2 |Continue to change angle parking downtown: 200 Blk S Main, 100 Blk N Main, 100 Blk N DOWNTOWN
Commerce, 200 Blk E Market; little time and expense invovled
LW 2 Downtown improvements,bathrooms, electric, pedestrian safety, beautification, wifi, lighting  |?? DOWNTOWN
AGS 9 [Parking around and surrounding the square. Issues with larger vehicles parked in areas that are DOWNTOWN
narrow and that make it hard to see oncoming traffic
LW 1 |Expanding economic development department, budget, office, staff?, marketing General fund, LEDC ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 3 Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts; contact ECCONOMIC DEV
existing and vacant building owners to see if they are willing to work with the City of Lockhart
to bring retail businesses and speciality shops, as well as industrial. Purchase buildings and
land when on the market for possible new businesses for the city.
JC 3 Economic Development ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 5 |Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart. ECCONOMIC DEV
M Set up meetings with developers for more retail space shopping centers along US 183 ECCONOMIC DEV

Page 1




LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL (PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and
AGS 6 Restaurants) ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 1 |All Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for all City Employees. EMPLOYEES
M 1 City Employee Raises EMPLOYEES
M 2 |House or fund gym membership/space (weight rm) in Senior Center area (cardio machine) for EMPLOYEES
City employees
AGS 8 |Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time Off-Alternating System. Even though EMPLOYEES
this has been discussed and the reasons for why it cannot be done, | would like to see a time
off alternating system, especailly during the holidays.
BW 1 |ENFORCE ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 1 |Enforce city ordinance regarding residential property ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 3 |Continue to work on City Park improvements PARKS
M 3 Do inventory of City properties to idenify areas for pocket parks LEDC funds PARKS
LW 3 Park improvements General fund PARKS
BH 5 Parks Improvements General Fund PARKS
JC 5 Parks PARKS
AGS 7 |Parks Improvemens: Purchase and update the park equipment to provide safe and fun filled PARKS
parks for all to use.
LW 7 |Town branch cleanup and beautification ?7?? PARKS
M 4  |Start process of Funding Sidewalks east of 183 connecting to the US 183 sidewalks SIDEWALKS
LW 6 |sidewalk repair and expansion general fund bond SIDEWALKS
BH 1 IMPLEMENT SIGNAGE IN LOCKHART General Fund (LEDC) and/or SIGNAGE
Hotel Tax
LW 4  |wayfinding, branding general fund SIGNAGE
LW 5 Entry signs general fund SIGNAGE
Jeff M 6 |Signage on Highway 183 and SH130 = directing people to Lockhart SIGNAGE
BW 4 SR CITIZENS CTR
Pursue opportunity to move Senior Citizens' Center to St Paul United Church of Christ Property
JC 1 Roads Grants or impact fees STREETS/INFRAS
AGS 2 Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing, STREETS/INFRAS
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods
BH 2 Continue improving City Streets Increase Transportation Fund STREETS/INFRAS
Jeff M 5 |Continue to make improvements and redoing our city streets STREETS/INFRAS

Page 1




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Infastructure

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad

1 Castillo water raw water mains and find additional water for the future.
Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for city employees so that we can keep our Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
1|/Gonzales-Sanchez current city employees. 29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l

Improve City Cemetery with GF Expiring debt saving and/or Cemetery Tax

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law. Expiring GF debt

1 Hilburn committed to Police and Fire increased pay rates. ($132,000)
Find ways to use activity center for multi-purpose use. (basketball, volleyball). Funding source:
1 Mendoza Different companies in town If approved by Council staff would approach local businesses
Continue to improve infrastructure (drainage, street repairs) throughout the city
1 Michelson Complete 2015 CO and budget $250,000 per year for street materials
Enforce ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town.
Make homeowners/residents (because some may be renters) take pride in their environment.
It is an eyesore to drive around town and see overgrown properties, junked cars, and stacks of
trash on porches, in yards and driveways. All levels of socio-economic residents in this town
have shown evidence of being disrespectful to their environment. City has no esthetics ordinance currently. The term "unsightly" is
1/Westmoreland subjective and is difficult to prove in court.

[y

White

Economic Development-expanding budget to get staff qualified to help Sandra with
recruitment, working with LEDC to either build Spec building or invest in more property, Main St
program to relieve Sandra of a lot of those duties

Main Street Program would require another person and funding to work
with local businesses while Economic Development would conscentrate
on new businesses and new jobs

Castillo

Economic Development

Need 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf and
buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing

N

Gonzales-Sanchez

Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing,
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad
water raw water mains and find additional water for the future. Most
streets that lack curbing will need to be totally reconstructed. Brighter
LED lights being experimented with since costs have come down.

Implement City Signage

Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost

2 Hilburn could be more than $70,000
New_ Park equipment. Funding Source: Each Councilmember responsible for a park and finding Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
2/Mendoza funding sources Parks Board Advisory Board
Continue to improve ways to attract businesses to Lockhart
Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf
2|Michelson and buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing
Create a policy for the residency of future admininstrative positions to live within the Lockhart
city limits. If an administrator wants to be employed by the City of Lockhart, they need to reside |It is not legal to require all department heads to live in the City limits;
here. Sharing in the daily lives of our citizens seems crucial to making decisions about only the City Manager is required to do so. All non-24 emergency
2 Westmoreland Lockhart. They are paid by city taxes. response employees must live within 25 mintues of City Limis

2|White Continue street rehab Need $ 250,000 annually minimum for street work materials
. City Facilites Not sure what this includes; can asses all departments for physical
3|Castillo needs
Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts ;
contact existing and vacant bldg owners to see if they are willing to work with City to bring LEDC could fund another report but the company says our numbers still
these small retail businesses, as well as industrial; possibly purchasing two downtown county |should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
buildings when on the market for possible new businesses in the downtown area. Stronger recruitment. Prime softgood companies constantly want to be on
platform with LEDC with methods to sell Lockhart and attract businesses. Highway 183 in 12-15,000 sf and at a reasonalbe cost per sf plus higher
3/Gonzales-Sanchez traffic counts.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority Council Person Goals Submitted City Manager Comments
Current transportation monthly rate is $ 4 for residential and others;
$260,000 annual which helps fund labor and equipment, but is not
sufficient for materials. Another $250,000 for materials is needed
3/ Hilburn Continue improving city streets: Increase Transportation Fund annually.
Wi-Fi Free Zones Downtown Square. Funding source City Budget, School District, Downtown
3/Mendoza sponsors Rough estimate is about $12,000
Refurbish City Hall If atrium removed, add more offices estimated at $45,000 and more
outside landscaping estimated at $ 5,000; elevator going in with
3|Michelson improvements to restrooms and offices

w

Westmoreland

Approach interested and future businesses cordially.
Stringent ordinances (and the way they are approached), scare off some businesses. Let's be
friendly in a positive way.

City Mgr respectfully requests names of such businesses. He has met
with 18 business representatives over past 15 months that were looking
at Lockhart but did not come. Except for the non-residential exterior
building esthetics ordinance, none of them indicated a problem with the
current ordinances or with staff. The main problems were high land
prices and the lack of "ready built retail and industrial buildings", and
traffic counts were not high enough. Most thought the impact fee
schedules were very reasonable compared to other cities. Will continue
to work toward friendlier customer service with simplified ordinances.

Park master plan to consider park bond issue, recreation dept and staff issues

Master Plan estimate: $ 45,000, recreation dept est at least $
60,000 for a recreational professional with another $30,000 for

3/White equipment and materials
Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l
Employees Wages Cost FY 16-17 due to Civil Serv Pay Plan Expansions already
4 Castillo apprroved: $ 132,000
Police Task Force: Budget extra funds to bring pack a_much needed P'0|ICE Tas'k Force to Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work: total cost
address any drug and gang related problems this city is being faced with especially on the East could be more than $70,000
4/Gonzales-Sanchez  |side of our city. Possibly ask the County to assist with funding. '

Continue working on bringing industry to Lockhart: Continue supporting Ms. Mauldin

LEDC is will have sufficient funding to be more aggressive starting FY 16-|

4 Hilburn 17
4 Mendoza Training Start up: Neighborhood Watch Training and Program: Police Budget E:::utsrfgf'\ll:éih(g‘ogz:)tic:;?p\;vtiagﬁhvli)/irlcl)ig;a:g 't?yp:gs;zl_“ was not sustained
4 Michelson Improve signage on HWY 183 as well as SH130 = directing people to Lockhart Possibly use of some of the KTB grant money

Evaluate and/or change the degree of the angled parking along the 4 blocks off of the square.

This would be: Main Street from Market to Prairie Lea Street; Main Street from San Antonio

Street to Walnut Street; Commerce Street from Market Street to Prairie Lea Street, and

Commerce Street from San Antonio Street to Walnut Street. These parking spaces were made

before long vehicles were made! If ther are cars parked on both sides of the streets, only one

care can pass through at a time. Then it becomes a one lane street. | have witnessed a Estimate to black out existing thermoplastic markings, redefine layout,

differenct angled parking arrangement, and it provides more room and is much safer for the and apply new thermoplastic markings with angle parking  =$ 12,000;
4 Westmoreland drivers and pedestrians. will probably loose 4 spaces per block. 2 on each side

Branding and wayfinding—may be included in #1 Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
4 White could be more than $70,000

Parks Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
5|Castillo Parks Board Advisory Board

Working with 6 more subdivisons, either new or expanding, and possibly

5/Gonzales-Sanchez Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart one more very large one northwest.

Improve tourism in Lockhart - City Council continue to work with and encourage Chambers of
Commerce to be more involved

Council can make this directive to Chambers when dividing out HOT

5|Hilburn funds
Finding more funding for Retail Market Study. Zip code demographics with reports. Funding LEDC could fund another |"eport but the company says our numbers stil
LEDC should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
5/Mendoza recruitment.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016



Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Work with LEDC or someone equivalent to build a building to help attract business

Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf.
Most softgood retailers want 12-15,000 on Hwy 183 at a reasonable

5|Michelson price and increased traffic volumes
Sidewalks to include lighting Funding required; for example San Jacinto to Jr High estimate is
5/White $130,000 just for materials along Maple walkway
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
Restaurants) could be more than $70,000. Chambers could use HOT for more
6 Gonzales-Sanchez tourism.

Continue to work on City Park improvements

Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

6 Michelson Parks Board Advisory Board

6 White Pursue possible ESD-EMS district Legal issue with participation by County and City of Luling preferable
Parks Improvemens: Purchase more park equipment to provide safe and fun filled parks for all |Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

7|Gonzales-Sanchez to use. Parks Board Advisory Board

Mendoza

Start Talks With YMCA Austin again. Seek sponsors funding if necessary

Our population hurt in previous discussions, Will pursue again. They
usually want commitment for a minimum number of individuals and
families depending on population of not only City but its metro area

~

Michelson

Work on building a civic center/ recreation center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

~

White

Cemetery maintenance

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law

[ee]

Gonzales-Sanchez

City Hall: Refurbish with Improvements and/or Upgrades

Elevator and improvements to restrooms planned; better offices for
Connie and Sandra planned also.

©

Gonzales-Sanchez

Convention Center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

10

Gonzales-Sanchez

Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time off-Alternating system

City emlpoyees now have 12 holidays and 1 personal holiday; time off is
granted by seniority with department head responsible for keeping
sufficient personnel to serve the public needs. Employees also receive
at least 2 weeks of vacation time. Those employees required to work on
holidays receive their normal pay plus holiday pay.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15
TOTAL

Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
General Government
Hotel Tax Fund
2009 Tax & Revenue 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
Total Hotel Tax Fund P & | 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
LEDC |
2008 GO Refunding 300,000 300,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 37,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,182,139
Total LEDC Fund P & | 337,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,482,139
2015 Capital Projects Fund
2015 Tax & Revenue ‘ 122,620 122,620

|
Total 2015 Capital Projects Fund 122,620 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 122,620

[
Drainage |
2008 GO Refunding 31.00% 100,000 100,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 100,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,016,289
Total Drainage Fund P & | 200,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,116,289

[
General Fund |
2008 GO Refunding 91,210 91,210
2015 Tax & Revenue - -
Total General Fund P & | 91,210 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 91,210
Debt Service Fund
2009 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 333,210 331,060 328,972 327,883 336,575 329,615 737,655 742,642 741,325 743,920 750,210 749,978 753,440 7,206,485
2006 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 50,455 48,815 47,175 50,535 48,690 46,845 292,515
2006-A Tax & Rev CO's | 93.00% 266,916 267,594 267,890 267,803 267,332 271,128 1,608,664
2015 Tax & Revenue 12.00% 91,487 117,779 117,779 117,659 117,803 117,923 155,867 155,927 155,543 155,615 155,645 155,861 155,969 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 2,895,035
Total Debt Service Fund P & | 742,068 765,248 761,816 763,880 770,400 765,511 893,522 898,569 896,868 899,535 905,855 905,839 909,409 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 | 12,002,699

[
Total General Government 1,533,255 969,630 949,909 951,924 958,503 953,663 | 1,097,167 | 1,102,239 | 1,100,381 | 1,103,078 | 1,109,410 | 1,109,482 | 1,113,096 326,416 326,061 326,167 325,847 326,181 326,040 326,507 | 16,334,957

[

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016



City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15

TOTAL
Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
Proprietary
Electric Fund
2008 GO Refunding 3.59% 40,379 40,379
2013 SIB Loan 30.81% 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 1,280,721
Total Electric Fund P & | 111,530 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 - - 1.321.]:00
Water Fund
2006A Tax & Rev CO's 7.00% 20,090 20,142 20,164 20,157 20,122 20,408 121,082
2008 GO Refunding 36.38% 409,192 409,192
2009 GO Refunding 86.69% 165,829 165,775 165,656 165,477 169,357 168,625 167,709 170,852 169,384 171,937 174,082 171,534 177,194 2,203,410
2015 Tax & Revenue 49.60% 378,148 486,818 486,818 486,322 486,917 487,413 644,248 644,496 642,909 643,207 643,331 644,223 644,670 664,510 663,468 663,778 662,842 663,822 663,406 664,800 | 11,966,146
2013 SIB Loan 35.80% 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 1,488,169
Total Water Fund P & | 1,055,935 755,411 755,314 754,632 759,071 759,122 894,633 898,024 894,969 897,820 900,089 898,433 904,540 747,186 746,144 746,454 745,518 746,498 663,406 664,800 | 16,187,999
Sewer Fund
2008 GO Refunding 16.36% 183,990 183,990
2009 GO Refunding 13.31% 25,461 25,452 25,434 25,407 26,002 25,890 25,749 26,232 26,006 26,398 26,728 26,336 27,206 338,302
2015 Tax & Revenue 4.30% 32,783 42,204 42,204 42,161 42,213 42,256 55,852 55,874 55,736 55,752 55,773 55,850 55,889 57,609 57,518 57,545 57,464 57,549 57,513 57,643 1,037,388
2015 Tax & Revenue TRNSF 170,305 186,594 186,302 186,653 186,945 279,275 279,421 278,487 278,662 278,735 279,261 279,523 291,203 290,590 290,773 290,222 290,798 290,554 291,374 4,905,677
2013 SIB Loan 33.39% 77,102 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 1,387,844
Total Sewer Fund P & | 319,336 315,064 331,334 330,973 331,971 332,193 437,979 438,629 437,331 437,915 438,338 438,549 439,721 425,914 425,210 425,421 424,788 425,449 348,067 349,017 7,853,201
Airport Fund
2000 Airport 100.00% -
Total Airport Fund P & | - - - - B - -
Total Proprietary Fund L &l 1,486,801 | 1,141,626 | 1,157,799 | 1,156,757 | 1,162,193 | 1,162,466 | 1,403,764 | 1,407,804 | 1,403,451 | 1,406,887 | 1,409,579 | 1,408,133 | 1,415,412 1,244,252 | 1,242,505 | 1,243,026 | 1,241,458 | 1,243,099 | 1,011,473 | 1,013,817 | 25,362,300
Grand Total } 3,020,056 | 2,111,256 | 2,107,708 @ 2,108,681 @ 2,120,696 | 2,116,129 | 2,500,931 | 2,510,043 | 2,503,832 | 2,509,965 | 2,518,989 | 2,517,615 2,528,508 | 1,570,668 | 1,568,566 | 1,569,193 | 1,567,305 1,569,280 | 1,337,513 | 1,340,324 | 41,697,257

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016









